Travel Food Services Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
(Al amotnts wre in INR millions, unlesy otherwise stated)

Particulars Note e . A? u
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
ASSETS
Non-currcal assets
Property, plani and cquipment 3 1,035 28 776.77 806.25
Cupital Work-in-progress 3 109.15 47.35 225
Other Intangible assets 5 6.08 535 4.82
Right-of-use assets 4 2,619.86 2,545 R6 3,097.25
Financial asscts
(i} Investments 6 55428 47293 447,63
(i) Loans 7 1.515 44 971.54 236 47
(1ii) Other financial assets 8 450 67 361.05 390.68
Deferred lax assels (net) 9 36691 51492 54151
Income luax asscls (net) 10 199 39 70.32 103 22
Other non-current assets 11 56 58 98 23 2399
Total non-current assets 7.113.64 5.864.32 5,654.07
Current assets
Invcntories 12 82.58 8005 5394
Financial asscts
(i) Investments 3 332723 3,202.02 227399
(i) rade receivables 14 97012 1,056.6% 463.92
(is1) Cash and cash equivalents 15 204.17 239.19 S51.83
{iv) Bank balances other than (i1i) above 16 82420 92183 802.40
{v) Louns 7 106 57 60 00 003
(vi) Other financial assets 17 38052 184.46 172 50
Other current gssels 18 113.58 117.59 97.12
Tatal current assets 6,208.98 5.861.42 3.915.73
Total assets 13321.62 11.726.14 9,569.80
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity sharce capital 19 38.73 3R.73 3R73
Other equity 20 6.049 19 5.318.82 3.376 76
Total equity 6.087,92 5,357.55 341549
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
(i} Bortowings 21 65.04 22016 307 %6
(ii) Leuse liabilities 22 2.653.18 2.862.71 3.492.31
(ii1) Other financial liabilities 23 88 33 77.50 4328
Provisions M 43.25 38.02 41.00
Total Non-current liabilitics 2.849.80 3.198.39 3.926.45
Current liabilities
Financial labilities
(i) Borrowings P 5548 5548 0.04
{1i) Lease habilities 26 86421 636 33 522.72
(iii) Trade payables 27
() Total outstanding ducs of micto cnterprises and small cnterpiises: and 17508 108 20 37.53
{b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2.408.80 1,55927 1.024 43
{iv) Other financial liabilities 28 43478 296.13 269.89
QOther cuent liabilities 2 163 24 170,79 136.23
Prosisions 30 246.92 230.94 206 11
Current tax liabilities {net) 31 3639 93 04 2091
Total current liabilities 4,384.90 3.170.20 2,227.86
Tatal liabilities 7.234.70 6.368.59 6.154.31
Tatal equity and liabilities 13,322.62 11.726.14 9,569.80
Summiny of material accounnng pulicics &2

The accompanying notes for an integral pant of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
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Travel Food Services Private Limited

Standalonc Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless othervise statedy

Not Year ended Year ended

N 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 32 11,424 36 8.929.79
Other income 33 731.97 407 42
Total income 12,156.33 9,337.21
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 34 2.121.66 1.592.22
Purchascs ol stock-in-trade 33 24(.07 13328
Change in iny entories of stock-in-trade 36 (28 72) 5.19
Employee benefits expense 37 1,823.70 1.300 14
Finance costs 38 480 64 469 85
Depreciation and amortisation expense 39 1,045.72 786.62
Other expenses 40 3,531 89 2,429 17
Total expenses 9,215.96 6,736.47
Profit before tax 2,940.37 2,600.74
Tax expense
Current tax 41 83533 643 44
Deferred tax 41 (52.97) 23.46
Tax expense 782.56 666.90
Profit for the year 2.157.81 1,933.84
Other comprehensive income {OCIy
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or foss:
Remeusurement of define benefit liability 381 .36
Income tax relating to itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 4] (01.98) (3 13)
Other comprehensive income for the veur, pet of tax 2.85 8.23
Total comprehensive income for the vear 2.160.66 1.942.07
Earnings per equity share (face value ol INR 10 each)
Basic eamings per share (INR) 43 35715 499 32
Diluted camings per share (INR) 43 557 15 499 32
Sumimary of material accounting policies [ &2

The accoimpanying notes formm an integral part of the standalone tinanciaf slatements

As per our report of even datc attached

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Statement of Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(A amounts are in INR millions. wunless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Cash ltows from operating activities
Net prolit before tax 2,940.37 2,600.74
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,045 73 TR6.61
Net impairment on property. plant and equipment 4574 -
Finance costs 4X0 64 469.85
Interest income under the effective interest method (210.51) (12718}
Tnterest income on income tax refund (2.2h (3.07)
Dividend fiom subsidiary (R4 .00y (63.00)
Net gain on sile of Property. plant and equipment (Net) (3 66) (331
Net gain on sale of current investiments (249 69) (63 82)
Net change in fawr value of financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL 11.00 (74 44)
Impairment loss on financial and non-financial asscts 5563 6310
Doubttul debts advance written back (1132) (29.66)
Reversal of provision towards interest receivables (80.64H .
Gain on termination of lease arrangement (4907 -
Unrealised gain on account of foreign exchange fluctuations (10.39) (8.74)
Operating cash inflow before working capital changes 3.877.62 3.545.06
Adjustments for working capital change in:
-(Increase) in inyentories 12.33) (26.11)
-Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 142.14 (331 8
-Decrease (increase) in other assets 58.02 (267.68)
-(Increase)decrease in other financial assets (244 12) 2209
-Increase in trade payables 860.66 576 86
-Increase/(decrease) in other financial labilities 260.05 (28.33)
~(Dcerease) increase in other liabilitics (16.31) 26.67
-Increase in provisions 17 40 049
Net decrease/(increase) in working capital 1,075.31 (227.97)
Cash generated from operations 4.952.93 3.317.09
Income taxes paid (net of refund) (1.023 46} (541 48)
Net cash generated [rom operating activities (A) 3,929.47 2,775.61
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property. plant and cquipment (including CWIP and capital advance) (683.32) (73.05)
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment 22.61 421
Proceeds from maturity ot bank deposits 1.048.94 319.26
Bank deposits placed (878 93) (R69.91)
Purchase of intangible asscts (3.03) (473
Acquisition of iy estinent in subsidiary (0.10) (1.00)
Investment in equity instruments in joinl venture (8100 (24.30)
Investment 10 equity instruments in associates (023) 2
Puarchase of Mutual fund Inyestments (6.724 53) (3. 44830
Proceeds from sale of Mutual tund Inyvestments 6.638 02 4.660.73
Loans given (334 10y (740.74)
Dividend income 84 00 63.00
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (111173 {1,617.05)
Cash ITows from linancing activities
Dividend paid (1,430 29) -
Repayment ot [nter corporate deposit (2.97) (7.08)
Repayment of borrowings (138 72) (V35.600)
Repayment of lease lubilities (1.242 49) (R96.20)
Finance cost (1729 27.70
Net cash (used in) financing activities ( C) (2.852.76) -(971.20)
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (35.02) 187.36
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ot the year 239,19 S1.83

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 204.17 239.19




Travel Food Services Private Limited

Statement of Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amowrs are in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

| The above Statement of Standalone Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method™ as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7

“Statement ot Cash Flows"

2 Ind AS 7 requires the entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financials statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising fromn financing
activities, including both changes arising from cashflows and non-cash changes. suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances in the Batanec Sheet for liabilities arising (rom (inancing activitics. to meet the disclosure requirement

Reconciliation of movement of liabilities te cash flow arising from financing activities

.Lea.s'es. Burrowings Total

liabilities
Balance as on 01 April 2022 4.015.03 307.90 4322.93
Changes from financing cash flows
Payment of lease liability (896 22) - (896.22)
Repayment of Term Loan - (95 60) (95.60)
Total changes from financing cash flows 3.118.81 21230 333114
Other changes
Liability-related
New leases 9.65 - 9.65
Interest expense 390.60 35.63 426.23
Interest paid - 27170 27.70
Balance as on 31 March 2023 3.519.06 375.63 3.794.69
Changes trom financing cash llows
Proceeds from inter company deposils
Payment of lease liability (1.243.49) - (1.243.49)
Repavment of Term Loan - (158 72) (158.72)
Total ch from financing cash flows 2.275.58 116.91 2.392.48
Other changes
Liability-refated
New leases 800 47 . 800.47
Gain on ermination of lease arrangement 49.07 - 49,07
Inlerest expense 392127 20 89 413.16
Interest paid - (17.29 (17.29)
Balance as on 31 March 2024 3.517.38 120.51 3.637.89
Break of Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year :-
Cash on hand 3105 1721
Cash in Transit 6.61 4.40
Balanccs with banks
- an cunent accounls 167 31 217 58

20417 239.19

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our1eport of even date attached

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Finm Registration nuinber: 101248W W-100022
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Date: 30 Seprember 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Director
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Travel Food Services Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

(A amowis are in INR millions wnless othenise stated!

(i) Equity share capital Amuount
Balance as at 1 April 2023 38.73
Chaneges in equity share capital due io prior period eiror =
Restated balance as at | April 2023 38.73
1 Inges i eguity share capital deirmmg tie vear -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 38.73
Balance as at 1 April 2022 38.73
Chanues in zquity share capilal due ta prior period enot =
Restated bulance as at | Apnl 2022 38.73
Chanzes in equity share eapital during the vear E

38713

Balance as ar 31 March 2423

(b) Other equity

Reserves and Surplus

. Tutal other equily

Capital reserve Securitics premium | Refained eatnings
Balance as at 1 April 2023 37.43 996.70 4.284.69 3.318.82
Total comprehensive income for the vear ended 31 March 2024
Profit fur the year 2157381 215781
Other comprchensive income (OCI)
- Remeaswiemnent of defined benetlt Linbilin . net of income tax* . - 183 283
Total compreheusive income for the vear 31 March 24 37.43 996.70 6.443.33 7.479.48
Transactions with owners of the Compans
Distributions
Dividend > - (1.43029) (1430 29)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 37.43 996.70 3,015.06 6.049.19
Balunce as at | April 2022 (Reler note 39) - 1.101.83 2,291.07 3.392.92
Putsuant to the cumposite Scheme of Ayangement and Amalgamation
approved by NCLT{Refer note 33)
- on account ol merger 3507 . 33 60) (18.53)
- on account of adjustiment of securitizs premium [QUERED 15 -
Pursuant Lo the composite Scheme o’ Anangement foe tanszer of 136 236
Business Undertaking (Refer noie 32y o
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31T March 2023
Prulit for the yeas - 1933 34 1933 %4
Other comprehensive income (OCT)
- Remeastiement ol detined benefit Liability. net of income wax* . - 323 X23
Total comprehensive income tor the vear 31 March 2023 37.43 996.70 4.284.6Y 5.318.82
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3743 996.70 4,284.69 3.318.82

* The Company has elected to recognised the remeasurement of defined benetit Liability(net ol ncome tax) as a part of retained camings

The accompanying notes tornt an integral part ot the standalons linancial sttements

As par our report of sven dote attached

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA] Firm Registration number: 101248W W.100022

A
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Farhad Bamji
Partner
NMembership No: 103234

Blace: Mumbii
Date: 30 Seplember 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors off
Travel Food Services Private Limited

CIN: USSZ09MH2007PTC 76043
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Karan Kapur
Director
DIN.OITIHH4S

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 September 2024

Varun Kapur
Director
DIN: 0113399

Place: Mumbayi
Dute: 30 September 2024




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Note to the standalone financial statement as at 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in INR millions, uniess othernise stated)

1. Company overview

Travel Food Services Privale Limited (the Company or the Paient), registered under the Companies Act, 1936, haviny its registered oftice at Block-A Soulh Wing [st Floor

Shiv Sapar Estate Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli. Mumbai - 400018,

The Company is primarily involved in managing and operating food and beverage outlets(Travel QSR) and lounges at domestic and intemational terminals of airports and
railway stations. Travel QSR business comprises a range of curated food and beverage (“F&B™) concepts across cuisines. brands and formats, which arc adapted to cater to
customers” demands for speed and convenience within travel environments. Lounge business comptises designaled areas within airport terminals, accessible primarily by first
and business class passengers, members of airline loyalty programmes, select credit card and debit card holders and members of lovalty programmes

2A. Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2021 notificd under Scction 133 of Companics Act, 2013, (the "Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act

The Company's standalone financial stalements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2023 were prepared in accordance with Rule 3(2) of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2021, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act

As these are the Company's first standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company is provided in Note 59

The Standalone financial statements were autharised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 30 September 2024

Dectails of accounting policics are included in Note 2B

B. Basis ol measurement
These linancial slalements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for the Tollowing items

« investments - measured at fair value.
« defined benefit plans — defined benefit Liabilities's

C. Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in [ndian Rupees "(INR)" or "(Rs.)", which is also the Company’s lunctional curvency and all amounts have been rounded lo the nearest
millions, unless otherwise indicated. Wherever the amount is represented as '0" ('zero') it construes a value less than five thousands

D. Use of judgements and estimates

[n preparing these financial statemnents, management has made judgements and estimates hat affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilitics, income and cxpenses. Actual results may differ trom these cstimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis,
Revisions to estimales are recognisced prospectively.

(i) Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies Lhat have the most signilicant effects on the amounts 1ecognised in Lhe financial statements is included in
the following notes:

Note 50: Leascs

The Company cvaluates if an arrangement qualifics to be a lease as per the requirements of ind AS 116. Such a identification of a lease requires significant judgement. The
Company uses signilicant judgement in asscssing the lease term (including anticipated rencwals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the leasc term as
the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option: and
periods covered by an option to terminate the leasce if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercisc that option. In assessing whether the Compary is reasonably certain to
exercise an option lo extend a lease, or not to exercise an oplion to terminate a lease. it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the
Company to exercise the option to cxtend the lease, or not to cxcrcise the option to lerminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term it there is a change in the non-
canccllable petiod ol a lease. The discount rate is gencrally based on the incremental borrowing rate of the Company.

(ii) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

The preparation of the financial slalcmenls in conformity with Ind AS requircs management (o make judgements, cstimates and assumplions that affect Lhe application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets. liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting cstimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected,

The areas involving sigmificant estimates and judgements are:

Uscful lifc of property, plant & cquipment - Note 3

Leases — Note 50

Estimation of’ Defined Benetit Liability - Note 42

Recognition of deferred tax assels - Nole 9

Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies - Note 45 and Note 39
Fair value of tinancial instruments - Note 48

Impaimment of trade receivables and other financial assets - Note 48

E. Opcrating cycle

All asscts and liabilitics have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria sct out above which are in accordance
with the Schedule 111 1o the Act. Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash cquivalent, the Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Note to the standalone financial statement as at 31 March 2024
(All amouts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

F. Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a valualion team that has overall responsibility for overseeing
all significant fair value measurements. including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to
measure fair valucs, then the valuation tcam assesscs the evidence obtained from the third partics to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of the
Accounting Standards, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be clussified

Significant valuation issucs are reported to the Company's audit committee Fair values arc catcgorised into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscts or liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | thal are observable lor the asset or liability. either directly (i.e.. as prices) or indirectly (i .e.derived from prices)
Level 3: inputs for the assel ot liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a
liability fall into different levels of the fair valuc hicrarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair valuc hicrarchy as the
lowest level inpul thal is significant (o the entite measurement. The Company recognises translers belween levels of the fair value hierarchy al the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in note 50.

2B. Material accounting policies
(i) (a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is fixed consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognises revenue when il transfers
control over a good or service to a customer, The following table provides information about the revenue recognition policics:

Type of products and service Revenue recognition policles
Lounge services Revenue is recognized as and when the services are rendered to the customers and there are

no unfulfilled obligations. The performance obligation is fulfilled at the time of customer
availing the services of the lounge.

Travel QSR Travel QSR represents salc of food and beverages predominantly to passcngers. Revenue
from Travel QSR is recognised at the point that control of the goods is passed to the
customer. This is deecmed to be at the point of sale of food and beverages. Revenuc is
measured al the (ransaction price which is consideration received or receivable net of
discounts, excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Management and other services Income from management and other services is recognized on accrual basis and in
accordance with the contractual arrangemcent entered into with the respective partics. The
performance obligation is fulfilled over the period of time

Other Operating income
All other 1evenuc is recognised in the period in which the performance obligation is satisficd at a point in time,

Interest income
Interest incorne is recognized using the Cffective Interest Rate (EIR) method.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to reccive payment is established.

(b) Contract balances
(A) Contract asscts

A contracl asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services rendered to the customer. If the Company performs by rendering services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract assct is recognised for the camed consideration that is conditional

(B) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has reccived consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company renders services to the customer. a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as 1evenue when the
Company performs under the contract,

(c) Trade receivables
A trade receivable is recognised i an amount of consideration is unconditional (i.e.. only the passage of lime is required before payment of the consideration is due). Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. Further, refer to accounting policies of financial assets.

(ii) Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. The undiscounted amount of short-term
cmployce benefits expucted to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized as an expense during the period.

Defined contribution plan

The defined contribution plan is post-cmployment benefit plan under which the Company contributes fixed contribution to a government administered fiund and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further contribution. The Company’s defined contribution plan comprises of provident fund. The Company’s contribution to defined
contribution plans arc recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related services.
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Travel Food Serviees Private Limited
Note to the standalone (inancial statement as at 31 March 2024
A amonnts are wn (5B oadlions _ad o othenase stared)

2B. Material accounting policies (continued)

Defined benefit plans
The Compuny has defined benefit plans comprising of gratuily Cotapany’s Liabuity towards ¢
determimed based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit eredit method: The rate used 1o discoant detined henelil Liabihily 1s detenuned by reference to market yields at the

ity Liabiily 1 untfunded The present value of the detiaed benelit oblrgauon 1

Balance Sheet date on Indian Gevernment Bonds for the estimated term ot Liabalits

Re-measurements comprising of ta) actuarial gains and losses. and (hy the elfeet of the asset cetling. 1 any, (excludig amounts included m net interest on the net delined benelit
labibity ) are recognised immediately i the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit w retamed carnings theough other comprehensive meome i the period in whieh they

aceur. Re-mensurements ate not 1eclassafied to statement of profit and loss m subsequent peniods

Gams of Tosses on the curtalment or scttlement are tecogmised immediately m profitand toss when the curlailment or seltfement oceurs

Compensated absences

The employees can cary-lorward a portion of the unutihsed acerued compensated absences and unlise 1t in future service pentuds and all the unutihed leave from the presious
year will Tapse afier 301h June ol 1he subsequent year: Since the compensated absenees Tall wholly withm twelve months afier the end ot the penod 1 which the employees render
the related service and are also expected 1o he utihzed wholly within tselve months after the end ol such penod, the benefit s classtfied as a short-term employee benelit The
Company records an Liability for such compensated absences m the perod 1 which the employee renders the services that merease this entillement Provision for compensated
is determmed on the basis of Teave eredited to mrdivadual employees” account and the last drawn salary and 15 charged W the starement ol profitand loss

absences

{iii) Income tax
Income tay expense comprises curtent and defermred tax s recognised i profit or loss excepl to the extent that 1t relates 1o a hiisiness combitation. o itents recounised directly m

cquily or in Other comprehensive meome

Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax pasable or recervable on the taxable mcome or loss Tor the year and any adjustment Lo the tas pay able or recenvable mrespect of presious
vears The amount of current Lax payable o receivable v the best estmuate of the tax amount expected 1o be pand o1 recerved that reflects uncertamty telated to meome Laxes it

any s mgiswed usmg tax ites enacted o substantively enacted al the reporting date

Cunent tax assets and liabilities are offset only 1t there 15 a Jegally enforecable 1ight to set off the recounised amounts, and 101y intended 1o realise the asset and settle tre Tiabihiy

on a net basts or simultaneously

Delerred tay
Deterred tix is recognised i respect ol temporary differences belween the carrying amounts ol assets and habilities for tinancial reportimg purposes and the corresponding
Ut Josses and tay credils

amounts used for Livation purposes: Delerred 1k s wlso recogmised i respect of caried Tory

Deferred 1ax 15 nat recognised tor:

»tlemporars dilferences on the tiual recogmiion of assets or habiities in & wansaction that:

- 15 not a business combination. and

- a1 the e ot the transaction () atfects neither accounung nor tasable profitor loss and
tn} does ol gine rise o equal ryable und deductible temporary differences

- temporany dilferences related to mvestments m subsidiaries, assoctates and jomt arrangements (o the extent that the Company 1~ able tw conlrol the tming ol the reversal of the

temporary difterences and i 1s probable that they will not reverse i the Toresecable future and

tion ol goodwill

» tanable tempaciry dillerences ansing on the inual rece

Delerred tax assets are recvgnised Tor unused 1ax fosses, unused tax eredits and deduetible wmporary differences 1o the extent that 1t 15 probable that tuture 1axable prorits witl be
avarlable agamst which they can be used. Futue tavable profits are determuned based on the reversal of relevant tasable tempotany ditferences. [ the amount ol taxable temporary
ung temporany differences. are considered. based on the

differences v st lictent (o 1ecogmise o defened tax asset i full, then future xable prodits, adjusted for reversals of ¢
business plans for mdiodual subsidwnes in the Compans Defened tax assets we reviewed at cach reportmg date and are teduced W the extent that 1t no longet probable that the

related tas benelit will be reahsed: such reductions are reversed when the probabihity of future taxable profits impraves

Deferred tas 15 meastred at the WX rates that are expected 1o apply 1o the petiod when the usset 1s tealised ot e habihity s setiled. based en the laws that hase been enacted or
substantively enucted by the repotting date

The measttement of detenred L rellects the Lix consequences that would fullow from the mannet m which the Company expects. at the reporting date. o recover or selle the

cany my amount oi 1tz assels and habiliues: Far this purposce, the cams mg amount ol mvestiment property s presumed to be recovered throuch sale

Deferred tax assets and habilities are olfsetf there s o legally enforceable nght t offet cutrent tax habihities and assetsand they relate  ncome laxes Tevied by the saome Lis
authority o the same tanvdble antiny. o on dulTerent s entines, but thes miend 1o settle current tax habilities and wescls on o net basis o therr W aasets and habthues will be
1ealised simultancously

{iv) Insentorics

Inventores consiat of penshable and non perishables vaw matertals and stock w trade which are valued atlower of cost and net realisable value on ttem by wtem basis

subsequently recoverable by the enterprise fron the tismg awthonugs), freight costand other apenditare meavred

Cost meludes purchase price. duties and taves cother than th

1 brmgme such myventories 1o then present locavon and candibon

Coste ol msentonies 1+ determmed on Frist In Fiest Out(LIEOT Dases. Provision s made tor msentonies expired or ot Bhey o be caasumed where considered necessan The

comparison ob costand net realisable value s mude onan iem-bv-lem basis

Nt realsable satue 15 the estumated selling price m the ardman course of business. less estimated costs of completion and the cimuted costs neges~ary 10 make the sale
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Trascl Food Services Private Limited
Note to the standalone financial statement as at 31 March 2024

s AL amounes are i LR mtlions_anfess otlierwise siated)

2B. Material accounting polivies (continued)

() Property, plant and cquipment

Recognilion and measurement
TTe cost ol an item of property, plant and equipment shall he recognised as an asset 1t and only iFibis probable that future scononne henelits associated with the em will flow w
the Company and the cost ut the ttem can be measured rehably

ltems ol property. plant and equipment (including caprtal-work-in progress) are measured ot cost. & tueh includes capitalised borcowing costs. less aceumulaled deprecration and

any accumulated impamment losses

Costof an stem ol property. plant and squipment comptises its pichase pice. including impott duties and non-telundable purchase taxes, after deductng tade discounts and
rebates. any directly atibutable cost of brmging the irem to 1ts working condition for its ntended use and ssumated costs of dismantling and removing the tem and restonng the

site on which o s locared

The cost ot a self=constructed em of property. plant and csquipment comprises the cost of materals and direct labour. any other costs directly attributable w bringing the dem to
wurking condition Tor it intended use and estimated costs of dismantmg and removimg the tem and testoring the site on s hich it locuied

1T significant parts of an ttem of property . plant and equipment have different wselud Tnves. When thes are accounted (or as separate ilems (major compenents) of propeity. plant and

equipment

Amy gam or loss on disposal ol an ttem ol property. plant and equipment (s 1ecognised m profit or los-

Transition to Ind AS
The cost of property. plant and equipment at | \pal 2022, the Company ' date of transtlion to Ind S, was determmned with reference to its carymg vatue recognised as per the

previous GAAP (deemed cost). as at the date ot ransition W Ind AS

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure s capttalised only 11t is probable that the tutue econonue benefits aovtated wath the expenditure will low w the Company and the cost of the item can
bhe measued teliably Al other expenses on existing assets. meluding day-to-day 1epair and mamienance expenditure and cost of teplacing paris, are charged to the Statement ol

Profit and Loss Tor the penod during which such expenses are incuned

Depreciation
Depreciation ts caleulated on the cost of items ol property . plant and equipment less their estimated residual values usig the strught-hne method over then estmated usetul Ines

and (s genetally tecowmised i the statement of prolicand loss

Uelul hife so estimated are in fine with the uselul lite mdicated by Schedule 11t the Companies \et 2013, except for plant and machmery. office equipment’s and fumiture and
lstwes Deprecration methods. useful hves and residual values are reviewed al cach reporting date and adjusted 1 appropriale Bascd on techmcal evaluation and consequent
ment eapects o use these dssels. Depreciation s

adviee, the meumagement belreves that 1y esiimates of uselul Tises as given above best represent the petiod over w hich mand

charged on pro rand basis for assets purchase ~ald dunog the year

The estimited uselul life ot tems of property. plantand equipment i~ mentioned below

Useful  lives  as  per|
Estimated Uselul dife as|Schedule 11 of the Act]

Assets
per management. (lor conpan
incorporated in India) |

Plantand Machinery S Yean
Fumiture and fintue S Years
Ollice equipmients S Y cans
Computer {imcluding senver & networks) 3 Yeuwrs
Vehwele = Yems

Leasehold smprovements are amottsed over the uselul Tife ofassets or the Tease term. wluchevet is Jower

Transition to Ind AS

The cost ol property. plant and equipment at 1 April 20220 the Company s date of hansition o Ind AS. was determned with relerence w s carryimg value recoginsed as per the
previous G AP (deemed cost). as at the date ol transition to Ind AS

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent cxpendiuee is capitalised only when o meieases the future ceononue benetits embedicd in e speciliv asset to whieh it relates the costal the dsset can be measuied
telably Al other expenditure. nciuding expenditure an nternally geaciated goodwill and brands, recountsed 1 the Statement of Profitand Loss as meurned

Derecognition
An item of property . plint and equipment and any signuicant part mally recogised s de-recognised upon disposal o when o tuture ceonomic benetits are expected trom s
ain o1 1oss ariamg on de-tecogition ol the asset teateulated as the difference betweca the nel disposal proceeds and the carts ng amount ol the as~et) is

use o1 disposal Any

included 1 the Statement ot Profitand Los~ when the assetis de-recognised

Capital worh=m-prouress mcludes the cost ol property. plant and eguipment that are not ready tor then mtended use as at the bulance sheet date

Advanee pand for acquisition constiuction of property, plant and squipment which are not ready for thew imtended use i cach balance sheet date we disclosed as cupital advanees

under other non-current assels
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Fravel Food Services Private Limited
Note to the standalone financial statement as et 31 March 2024
(U amonnis are s INR mdaons anless s o siteds

2B. Material accounting policies (continued)

(v1) Intangible assels

Recognitiun and measurement

Intanetble assets are caried at cost less accumulated amortization and aceumulated ipiment losses, 1F any. Costincludes expenditure that 1> direetly altributable 10 the
acquisttion of the mtangible assets ldentifioble intangihle assets are tecognised when 1ty probable that fiture econonte benefits attnbuted 1o the asset will flow 1o the Company

and the cost of the assel can be reliably measured

Computer soltwate s capitalised al the amounts paid (o acquie the respective Leense [on use and are amortised over the penod ot ity usetul lives

The amottisalion expense on mtangthle assets with tinite ves s recogmsed in the statement of profit and loss vnless such expenditure forms part ol catryiog value of another

Jeulated uver thetr estimated usetul Tives using the strarghe-line method. Amortisation methods, vseful Tinves and residual values are reviewed at cich

Amortsation is ¢

s

reporting date and adjusted 11 appropriate. The estimated useful hic ol mtngible assets 1s mentioned below:

Estimated  Usclul  Life

Intangihle assets
(Years)

Camputer sollwate 3

Franchisee nghis are amottised osver the useful lite of the conliact lerm

Derccognition
An mianzibie asset is derccognised upon dispo-al (ie . at the date the recipient obuns contoly or when no fulwe sconomic benelits mie oxpected from its wse or disposal Any
ee between the net disposal proceeds and the vy mg amount of the assey) s included w the

gt o1 loss awiisme upon derccogmiion of the asset (caleulated s the dife

sratentent of profitand Toss when the asset s detecognised

(viny Financial instruments

1. Financial Assers:
Classilication
On imitiad recogmtion the Company elassiies financial assets as subscquently measured at amortised cost. tur value through ather comprehensive imeome o tur value thiough

profitor loss on the basts of 1ts busiiess mode! (oy nanagung the financial sssets and the contraetual casl ow charactenstics of the financil as~et

[nitial recognition and measurement

All finamenal assets exeept rade recers able that does not contin sigmificant financing component (ot mestred subsequently at fan value thiough profic or loss) are tecognised
iialls at fr value plus transaction costs that are atributable to the acquisiton of the linanetal asset Purchases ot sales ol financial assels thatrequire delivery off assets within o
1me frame estahlished by regulation ar convention m the market place (regular way fadesy are recoenised on the trade date, 1e. the date that the Company commis 1o purchase o1

~ell the asset

F
A Financial asset” s measured at the amortsed ecstit both the follows

ncial assets al amortised enst

conditions are met:

D the assel s held within a business model whose objective 1s 1o hald assels fur collectmg contractual cash Now - and

1) contractual terms of the asset wive tse on specificd dates to cash flows that aiz salely payments of prncipal and nterest (SPPD on the i mepal amotnt outstanding

After intial measurement. such tinancial assets are subsequently measured at amortced costusing the effective nterest rate (EIR) method: Amortised cost ts caleulated by takiyg
into account any discount o preatumt and fees or costs that are an mtegral part of the EIR- The LIR amortsation 1s meluded i finanee weome the Statement of Praficand Loss
[he Tosses arisimg from impaiment are recognised e the Stateinent of Progitand Loss This category generally apphies to bade and ather tecersables, loans and advances et

Financial assets at [air value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial dasets included within the FV TPL calegory are measured at G value wath all cha tecognized in the Statement of Proficand Loss

Derecognition
A financial asset (or. where apphicable. a part ol a financial
financidl statentents) when:

cLon part of a company of sumular financial asiets) is primanily derecognised (e remosed from the Company s

- The nighis to tecerve cash lows from the asset hase expued. or

- The Company has transtferred 1ts ghts to recerve cash flows from the asset or has assumed anhabibity o pay the recenved cash Tows i Tull without matenal delay w2 thicd
party under apass-thiough’ arrangement: and cither

1 the Company has ransfened <ubstantially all the tsks and rewands of the asset. oy

tbut has transiened control of the st

ik the Company has nesther transterred nor retamed substanually all the tsks and rewards ot the a

Imparment of fnaneial assets and contract assets
The Company applies expected credit losses (ECLY model for meesurement and recogmition of 1o~ allowanee ou the follown

0 Trade recenvables and contracl assets
) Frianctdl dssats measured at amottized cost other than tade receables

In case of tade recenvables and contract assets. the Company follows a suplified approsch wheremn an amout equal to fitetime ECE s measured and recognized as Toss
allowanee

The Company computes ECL based on a prosision matees Fhe provasion matx s prepared based on historeally obseryed delault rates over the evpected he ol tade recenables
and s adiusted for fore nd-lookmyg estimates

In cose of other assels histed as above. subseguent to mital 1ecozniiion. are ssessed Tar estdence ol mapagment atend ol cach repotting period basis momitening of w hether there

has been a swgniticant merease e credit sk To aseess whether there s a ~igmificant merease m eradit risk. the Company: compares the sk o a default vecurming on the asset as at
1he teporting date wath he tsk ot default as a the date of nital recognioon. 1 considers avatlable reasonable and supportive tforwarding-lookmy mtormauwon 1t the credit nsk of
month ECL s measurad and recognizad as loss allowanee

such desets s notmereased sizulicantls - an amount equal v

Tny estments in subsidiaries
Investments it subsidiaries are caned at cost less aceumulated imparment lesses it any Where an indication of impaiement ¢vistss the canying amount ol the investment o~
ceessed and wiiiten down immediatel o s recovenable amount On dispostl of 1vestments e subsidines. the ditference berween net disposal proceeds and ihe caieying

amounts we recognized i the statement ol profin and loss




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Note to the standalone i ial as at 31 March 2024
(Al are m INR nullions,_unless atheniise stated)

2B. Material accounting policies {continued)

Tnvestment in associates and JV

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control or joint control over the financial and operating policies A joint venture is an
arrangement in which the Company has joint control, whereby the Company has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and liabilities

Interests in associates and the joint venture are accounted for using the equity method They are initially recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the standalone financial statements include the Company’s share of the profit or loss and OCI of equity accounted investees, until the date on which significant
influence or joint control ceases

11. Financial Liabilities

Classification
The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss. Such
liabilities shall be subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value being recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs The Company’s
financial liabilities include trade and other payables

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognilion, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method Gains and losses are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables etc

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new
financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss

OfTsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

(viii) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned above Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels,

described as follows, the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure value The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level | inputs) and the lowest priority to uncbservable inputs (Level 3 inputs)

Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability

(ix) Foreign currency transaction and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates at the date of the uansactions Foreign cxchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in the

Statement of Profit and Loss
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other income/other expenses

(x) Provisions (other than employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation Expected future operating losses are not provided

for

Where the Company expects some or all of the expenditure required o settle a provision will be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement is recognised when, and only
when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement wilt be received if the entity settles the liability The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to
settle the liability, the provision is reversed
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[ravel Food Serviees Private Limited
Note to the standalone financial statement as at 31 March 2024
Al amouns are LR midlions anless il il

2B. Vlaterial accounting policies (continued)

(xi) Leases

AL nception of a eontract, the Company assesses whether a contract s, or contams. dease. A contract is. vt conkuns, a lease 11 the contract convey s the right to control the use ol

an idennified asset for a period of ime i exchange for consideration

The Company as a lessee

es~es whelher a contract contains a fease. at imeeption of o contract. .\ contiact is, ot

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for prenuses The company
for consideration

contans. a fease 1E e contiact convey s the nght to contial the use ot an identified asset for a petiod o me m exehar

To itssess whether a4 contiact conveys the right to contiot the use of an identfied assel. the Company assesses whether
(1} the contract invalves the use of an identified asset

12y the company has substantially all ol the cconomie benelits Trom use of the asset through the pertod ot the lease and
(3% the company has the night 1o direct the use of the asset

AL the date ol commencement of the lease. the company recognizes a “Right af Lse™ ("ROU™) asset and a cortespanding lease liabiliny Tor all lease arrangements in which i 15 a

lessee. except Tor leases with a term of twelve months or fess (short-term leises) and fow value leases For these shar-lerm and low value leases. the company recognizes the lease

pay ments as an operaling expense on @ straght-line hasis vver the tenm of the Tease

The ROU assels are imtally tecognized at cost, whieh compiises the mital amount of the lease hability adjusted for any Tease payments made 3t or prion o the commiencement
any leuse meentives They are subsequently measuted ab cost Tess accumulated depreciation and impaniment Tosses 1 any and

date of the lease plus any initial direct costs Jes
adjusted for any remeasuarement of the Tease lability

ROU assels are depreciated from the commencement date on a stiarghi-line basis over the shoner of the leitse tetm and useful hife of the underlymg asset

The lease Tability iy inttialy measured al amortized cost at the present salue of the futare Jease paymenls The lease payments are discounted using the interest vate smplicit it the
lease or 1l not readily determnable. uang the meremental borrowing tates - the countiy of domicile ot the leases Lease labihities are remeasured with o conesponds
adiustment o the related nght nf use asset sl the company changes (s assessmentf whether it will exereine an extension ot termination optivn

(xii) [mpairment ol assets
ta) Financial assets

A finanoral asset not carmied at [ value s dssessed at each reporting dute W detenimne whether there i ohjective evidence that 1t s mpaired A finanetal asset s mpaired 1f

abicetiv e evidence mdicates that a loss event has veeurred atier the witial recogmtion of the asset. and that the Toss event had a negative effeet on the estimated futwre cash flows of
that ws~et that can he esimated reliably

Objective evidence that financial assets are mpaired ¢ melude default or delingueney by a deblor. restricturing ol an amount due 10 the Company on terms that the Company
would not olherw e consider. indications that o debtor ar suer sall enter bankrupiey. the disappeatance of an active market for & secunity The enuty consders evidence of

impairment for recennables for cach specitic asset A mdinidually significantreeenables are as<essed for specific impiurment

An impanment loss i respeet of o lnancial asset measured al amortized cost s ealeulated as the difference between ats carmying amount and the present value ol the eshmated
Jutwre cash Mows discountad at the assel s ongmal elfectine iterest tite. Losses are 1ecognized in statement of profitand loss and are reflected as ainallowance account againsi

Jecennables Interest on the mmpated assel contimnues to be cecognized as meome through the unwinding of the Jdiscount. When a subsequent event catses the amount ol unpainient

lo~s to decrease. the decrease m imparrment loss 15 reversed through statement of profitand los

he campany assess al cach date of Balanee sheet whether a financial assets or Company ol Tiuneinl assets 1s impaired T accerdance with Ind=A$ (09, the Company applics
evpected credic foss (ECLY model [or measurement and recogmition of impairinent Toss on the financul assets and credit risk exposure:

The Company Tallows “simplified approach™ for recogmition of impaument loss allowanee on Trade reccivables and contiact assets The application of simphlicd approach docs
not require the Company o track changes i credit sk Rather, 1t recognizes impanment loss allowance based vn Biletime GCLs at each reporting date. nght tront 1ts miial

recognition

For recognition of unpaiment lexs an other tinancial assets and nsk exposure, the Company determines that whether thete has been a signilicant mercase m the credi sk simee
il iecogmuon The Company applies a simplificd approach m cdeulating ECLs. Therefore. the Company does ot tack changes in creit visk. but mstead recognises loss
atlowance bused on lifetime ECLs at each repmting date. The Company has established a provision mati it s based on s Tuatorreal credit loss experence, adjusted for Torwand

toukmyg factors specific to the debrars and the economie enynonment

(h) Non tinancial assets

Other ussels tre tested for impanment whenever events or changes in cteumatances indicate that the ey mg amount may not be 1ecoy erable An impatnnent luss 5s 1ecognised toy

the amount by whieh the asset's cirnying amount exeeeds 1S recascrable amount. The recoverable amount i the ugher of an asset's L value less costs ol disposal and valuc in

use. For the purposes of dssessing impainment. I ate combmed at Uie lowesl levels Yor which there are separately dentitfiable cash mtlows which are largely mdependent ot the
Cash milow ~ from other assets o1 Company s ol assels (cash-generating umits) Non-linancial assels that sutfered impanment are review ed for possible reversal of the impanment at

the end ol cach reporting penad

(x

) Burrowing costs

Borrowng costs are interest and other costs meurzed m conneeton with the berrow g of fumds. Ay dillerence between the proceeds (net ol lransaction costsy and the redempuon
amount 1s recomsed m statement of profit and loss over the pertod of the borrowings usimg the elfecty e mterest method  Fees paid on the establishment ol loan facihoies are
recounsed as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it s probable that some or all of the taeibu: will be drawn down In tus case. the fee 1s detened until the draw down
oceurs: Ta the extent there s no avidence that 1t s probable that some or all ol the Taciity will be drawn dowi the fee s capitahised s prepay ment Toe Iiquidits serviees and
sy Tahe o substanual

amottized over the perod of the facthiny w which 1t telates Borrowing costs duectly awnbutable o aequisition or constiuetion of anasset v eh ne
petiod of tme woget ready for the mtended vse are capalised ws part ot the cost ol that asset € apitalisavon o hareow g costs s eeased when substanually all the activines

necess i o prepre the quabiivmg avset o s intended use or sale e complete: Oher burrosing costs e reeu nised anan eapense i the peniod mowhich they e meuned

Borowmas are classitied as current habiliies unless the Campany has an unconditional tght w deter seutlement of the Tabiliy for at least 12 months e the reporting peniod
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notc to the standalone financial statcment as at 31 March 2024
(il amounts are in INR millions. unless othervwise stated)

2B. Material accounting policies (continued)

(xiv) Contingent liability

Contingent liability is a possible obligation aiising trom past ¢vents and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present Liability that arises from past cvents but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
tesources embodying economic benefits will be requited to settle the Liability or the amount of the Liability cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The Company does

not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements

Conlingent asset is not recognised in linancial stulements since this may resull in the recognition of income that may never be realised. FHowever, when the realisation of income
15 virtually certain, then the related asset i~ not a contingent asset and is recognized. Provisions. contingent liabilities and conlingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date

(xv) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash flows arc prepared using the indirect method, whereby profit loss before extraordinary items and lax for the period is adjusted for the effeets of transactions of non- cash
nature. any deferrals or accruals of past or lulure operating cash receipts and payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows, The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company' are segregared

Cash and cash equivalents in die balance sheet and cash flow statement comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. which are subject to an insignificant risk of chinges in valuc.

(xvi) Earnings per share

Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic camings/(loss) per share is caleuluted by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable 10 equity sharcholders (afier deducting prefeience dividends and
atiributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear is
adjusted for events, other than conversion of potential cquity shares. that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources

Diluted Earnings Per Share

For the purpose of caleulating diluted carnings (loss) per share. the net profit or loss for the period attributable to cquity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted afler considering the effect of interest and other financing costs or income (net of attiibutable taxes) associated with dilutive
polential equity shares

(xvii) Operating segment

An operating segment is a component of the Corpany that engages in business activities from which 1t may carn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses
relating Lo Lransactions with other components of the Company). whose operaling results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker (o make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess 1ts performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. Operating seaments of the
Company are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker

{xviii) Common control business combinations transactions

Buniness combinations involving entities or businesses in which all the combming entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and
after the business combination and wheie that control is not transitory are accounted for as per the pooling of interest method. The business combination is accounted for as it
the business combination had occurred at the beginning ol the earliest comparative period presented or. il later. al the date thal common control was established: lor this
purpose, comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at their carrving amounts. The identity of the reserves is preserved. and they appear in the
standalone financial statements ot the Compuny in the same form in which they appeared in the finuncial statements of the acquired entity. The difference. it anv, between the

consideration and the amount of share capital of the acquired entity is transferred to capital reserve

2C. Standards issued hut not yet elfective

Ministry ol Corporale Affairs ("MCA™ notifics new standards or amendments (o the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as isstied from
time to time,

The MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 by issuing the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules. 2024, applicable
from April 1. 2024. as below:

1) On 12 August 2024 Introduction of IND AS 117 - [nsurance contiacts : IND AS 117 tnsurance Contracts is u comprehensive new accounting standard for insucance contracts
covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure

i) On 9 Scptember 2024 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA) has amended “Ind AS 116 Lease™ @ This amendment has introduced new provisions rclated to Ieasebuck
ransactions,

Lhe Company has evaluated the above amendments and does not expect this amendment to have any stgniticant impact in standalone financial statements,

B Ying 2y
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3(b)

Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless otherise stuted)

Capital work-in-progress

(a) Ageing of Capital work-in-progress(CWIP) as on 31 March 2024

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than | I-2 vears 2-3 years | More than 3 Total
vear years
Projects in progress 103.84 531 - 109.15
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 103.84 5.31 - - 109.15
Ageing of Capital work-in-progress(CWIP) as on 31 March 2023
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years | Morc than 3 Total
year years
Projects in progress 45.20 1,48 - - 46.68
Projects temporarily suspended - 0.67 - 0.67
45.20 1.48 0.67 - 47.35
Ageing of Capital work-in-progress(CWIP) as on 1 April 2022
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 Total
year vears
Projects in progress 1.58 - - - 1.58
Projects temporarilyv suspended - 0.67 - 0.67
1.58 0.67 - - 2.25

(b) There is no capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless othervise stated)

Non-current investments

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
(i) Investment at cost
Unquoted
National saving certificates 0.10 0.10 0.10
0.10 0.10 0.10
(i) Investments in subsidiary measured at Cost - Unquoted equity shares
Unquoted
Travel Food Services Global Private Limited, Mauritius 986 9.86 9.86
214,976(31 March 2023: 214,976, 01 April 2022: 214,976) equity shares of face value of USD 1 each,
fully paid-up
TFS Yamuna Airport Services Private Limited
88.46 88.46
(formally known as TFS (R&R Works) Private Limited’) B8sd6
25,46,000 (31 March 2023: 25,46,000, 01 April 2022: 25,46,000) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10
each. fully paid-up
Travel Food Service Delhi T3 Private Limited 64.48 64.48 64.48
84,00,000 (31 March 2023: 84,00,000, 01 April 2022: 84,00,000) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10
cach. fully paid-up
Semolina Kitchens Private Limited# 1.00 1.00 -
1,00,000 shares (31 March 2023: 1,00,000, 01 April 2022: NIL) cquity shares of face value of Rs 10
each. fully paid-up
QMT Lifestyle and Technology Services Private Limited 0.10 ) }
(w.e.f. 10 November 2023) :
10,000 sharc (31 March 2023: NIL, 01 April 2022: NIL) cquity shares of face valuc of Rs. 10 cach, fully
paid-up
Investment in preference shares
Travel Food Services Global Private Limited, Mauritius 17.30 1730 17.30
370,000 (31 March 2023: 370,000, 01 April 2022: 370,000) preference shares of face value of USD 1
each paid up
181.20 181.10 180.10
Investment in equity instruments in joint venture-Unquoted equity shares
GMR Hospitality Limited* 105.30 2430 -
1,05,30,000 (31 March 2023:24,30,000, 01 April 2022: NIL) cquity sharcs of face value of Rs. 10 cach,
fully paid up
Investment in equity instruments in associates-Unquoted equity shares
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 157,57 157.57 157.57
15,195,012 (31 March 2023: 15,195.012, 01 April 2022: 15.195,012) equity shares of face value of Rs
10 each, fully paid-up
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd 109.86 109.86 109.86
6.231,262 (31 March 2023: 6,231,262, 01 April 2022: 6,231,262) equity shares of face value RM. | each,
fully paid up
Tabemono True Aromas Private Limited 025 - -
24,990 (31 March 2023: Nil, 01 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up
372.98 291.73 267.43
554.18 472.83 447.53
Total investment in subsidiaries, joint venture and associates 554.28 472.93 447.63
554.28 472,93 447.63

Aggregate value of unquoted investments

* The Company subscribed GMR Hospitality Limited 5,70,000 cquity sharcs of INR 10 cach for an aggregate consideration of INR 5.70 millions as per Board Resolution
dated 19 October 2023 and 75,30,000 equity shares of INR 10 each for an aggregate consideration of INR 75.30 millions as per Board Resolution dated | December 2023.

# The Company has a commitment to sell 75% of the stake in Semolina Kitchens Private Limited




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standal financial ts
(Al amaounts are in INR wnidfivee, unless othenvise stared

7 Loans
ol considered po ‘vid atherwise sutied
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Non-current
Loans to related parties (Refer note 47 and details given below)
Louns given (refer below note (aand b)) 1.057.03 77929 23647
Intercorporate deposils given (refer betow note (¢ and d)) 275.00 167.40 =
Accrued interest receivable 18339 24 85 =
Accrued interest recervable considered doubtful (refer below note (e)) - 59.34 41 01
Less @ loss allowanee (refer below note (¢)) - (59 34) 100
1.515.44 971.54 236.47
Current
Loans to related parties (Refer note 47 & details given below)
Loans given (refer below note (a and b)) 8337 -
Accrued interest 1ecenvable {refer below nole (c) 23.20 - 003
Accrued interest recenable considered doubtful (refer below note (e)) - 21.30 23.08
Less : loss allowance (refer below note (¢)) - (21.30) (23.05)
Loans to partics other than related partics
Loans considered good (1efer below note (1)} - 60.00
Louns considered doubtful (refer below note () 60.00 - =
Less : loss allowance (60.00) - =
106.57 60.00 0.03

a) Loan amount of INR 903 98 millions (31 March 2023. INR 542.82 millions, 1 April 2022 NIL) given to SSP Malaysia Sdn Bhd @) = ®u for capital expenses, working capital
management and other operational expenses. SSP Maluysia Sdn Bhd one short term loan of $Imn is repayablc in Dec-24 and the other loans amounting Lo $9.8 mn is repayable in Jan 2028

b) Intercorpotate [oan given amount of INR 236 47 millions (31 March 2023 :INR 236.47 millions, 1 April 2022 : INR 236 47 millions) to Travel Retail Services Private Limited carrving
interest & 7% - 9.3% p.a. for capital expenses. working capital management and other operational expenses.

¢) Intercorporate deposit amount of INR 145.00 millions(3| March 2023: INR 79.91 millions 1 April 2022: Nil) given to Semolina Kitchens Pvt Ltd at 12.25% p.a for capital expenscs,
working capital management and other operational expenses

d) Intercorporate deposit amount of INR 130,00 millions(31 March 2023 INR 87.49 millions 1 April 2022: Nil) given to Travel Retail Services Private Limited at 7 75% p-a for capital
cxpenscs, working capital munagement and other operational expenses

¢) Provision created in carlicr years in respect of interest receivable of INR 80 64 million has been reversed durmg the year due to subsequent recovery
1) Loan amount of INR 60,00 Millions (31 March 2023: INR 60.00 Millions: | April 2022: INR NIL) given to Meghalaya Hotels Private Limited ("MHPL"). MHPL shall create a step down

subsidiary of MHPL ("SPV"). The loan amount will get converted into equily holding in the SPV 1F MHPL is unable Lo incorporate the SPV. the entire loan amount disbursed will be repaid Lo
Company with accrued interest at 9 5% p.a.Since MHPL is unable to incorporate the SPV, the loan amount has been impaired.

8 Other financial assets
(unsecired considered good unlesy othenvise stated)
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Non-current
Placed with partics other than related party
Security deposils 38392 24200 26167
Less @ Loss allowance (Refer note 48) - - {10.76)
383.92 242.00 25091
Placed with related party
Security deposils 54.78 10.17 9,07
54.78 10.17 9.07
Bank Deposit
Deposits with banks with original maturity of more than twelve months* 11.97 108 .88 130.70
450,67 361.05 390.68

* Bank deposit amounting to INR 5,12 Millions ( 31 March 2023: INR 107.67 Millions and 01 April 2022: INR 107 67 Millions) with a bank is for the purpose of bank guarantee given to
Airport Authotity ol India (AAI) in uccordance with concessionaire agreement and bank guarantee given to Deputy Commissioner of Cusloms lowards EPCG licenscs

10 Income tax asscts (net)

Particulars As at As at As at
: 31 March 2024 M March 2023 1 April 2022
Non cunrent lux asscts (net of Provision tor taxation) 199.39 7032 103.22
19939 70.32 103.22

11 Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 Murch 20023 1 April 2022
PTn.plu.l ‘._L‘c.nn' 078 3.68 3.66
»G:ra]’gaﬂ mrn 79.89 131,00 3225
,( L/ Tons Juu\uzy“ (24.09) (36,45) (11.92)
f Y1 a\"' 55.80 94.55 20.33

* )@

t < 56.58 98.23 23.99
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standatone financial statements
A amonnts wie on INR oullions wnless otherwase staredr

Inventurics
tlalued at the lover of cost und et realiahle sahie)

As at Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Raw materials 3943 6562 3432
Stock-n-trade 43 15 14 43 19 62
4238 H05 s34
Investments
As at As at As ut
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Current
Investments mandatorily at fair value through profit and loss
Quoted
Investment in Mutual Funds 3.52723 3.202 02 227399
3.527.23 3.202.02 227399
Aggregate bouk value of quoted imvestments P-327:23 3.20202 259
Aggregate market value of yuoted 1nyestments 332723 3.20202 227399
Cash and cash equivalents
Asat Asat As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

April 2022

Balances with banks:

On current accounts 16751 21738 3706
Cash on hand 3003 17 21 1261
Cash-in-transit 661 440 216

204.17 239.19 3183
Bank balances other than cash and cash equiyalents
s at Asal As at

31 March 2024

31 Mureh 2023

1 April 2022

Depostts with banks with orginal matunity ol more than three monthts but less than twelve months 82420 921 83 024
824.20 921.83 302.40
Other financial assets
(nsecired considered saod unless othenvise statedy
As at As at Asat

31 Muarch 2024

31 March 2023

1 April 2022

Currcent
To parties other than reluted parties
Security deposils

Other recervables
Considered doubtful
Less @ loss allowance

1o related partics (Refer note 47)
Management [ees receivable

Recovery of expenses reeenable

Bank Deposit
Deposits with banks with anginal maturits of more than twelve moaths

196 12 164 16 148.69
300 330 016
030 0.50 16.04
(050 {1).30) (1604
3.00 3.30 0.16

RhRth 1026 031
1303 647 2298
73.71 16.73 1329

10769 0.27 .36

107.69 0.27 0.36

380.52 184.4¢ 172.50
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Travel Faod Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone finuncial statements
¢ Ll amaounts wre i INR onthons unless othernise stated)

Other current assets
(unsecured consdered sood unless otherwee stated)
As at Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 I April 2022
Prepaid expenses 2635 19 24 1529
Advances 1o employees 390 304 438
Advance to supphets
Considered good 64 54 94 30 6411
Considered doubtful 4307 3313
Less @ Provision for doubttul advances (45 07) (130 33) (3313)
64.54 90.30 64.11
Balance with Government authorities
Goods and services tax 1879 01 1234
113.58 117,59 97.12
Movement in provisions for advances
Advance to suppliers Capital advances
Balance us on 01 April 2022 53.13 11.92
Proviston created . 2453
Provision used (2.5%) -
Balance as on 31 March 2023 50,53 36.45
Provision created
Provision used | (5 481 (12 36y
Balance as on 31 March 2024 { 45.07 24.09
Other equity
Resery es and surplus . Al
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(i) Secwrities premium 996.70 996.70
(1) Retamed carnmgs 301506 4284 69
(i) Capural reserve 3743 3743
6.049.19 531882

Total reserves and surplus

(i) Sccuritics premium

Sceurities premium s used o tecord the premium reeenved on issue of shates. 1Us ubilised 1 accordance with the prosisions of the Companies Act. 2003

\s al Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Bualance at the beginning of the year 996.70 1.101 85
Addion durmg the year - -

- on account vl adjustment of securities premiwm - 1105.13)

Balance at the end of the year 996.70 996,70

(ii) Retained earnings

Retamned carnings are the protits thal the Company has carned il date as reduced by dividends on other distributions pad to sharcholders. Retamned carmings meludes re-
measurement loss (gain) on detined benefit plans. net of laxes that will not be reclassified o profit o los~. Retained earnings is a tree reserve avinlable to the Company

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the vem 4.284.69 229107
Prolit for the year 215781 1,023 84
Remeasurement of defined benefit Liability. net of income tax 285 823

Dividend™

Pursuant Lo the composile Scheme ot Arrangement and Amalgamation
approved by NCLT{Reler note 33)

- on account of merget

- on account of adjustment ol securities premium

Balance at the end of the year

*Dividend declared and pard by the Company during the year INR 369.20 per equity share (3! March 2023 NIy

(i) Capital reserve

(1,430 29)

(33.60)

10513

S.015.06 4.284.09

The capital reserve represeats the excess of the Company s investment over share caputal of Fransferor Compinies or exeess of the canying value of net wenlifiable assels

of aequured under over the purchise considerauon( Refer Note 52 and 33 ol the standalone Tnancial statements)

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Bualunce at the beginning vt the year 3743
Pursuant to the compusite Scheme of Mirangement aod Amalgamation

appruved by NCLT{Reter note 33) KRN
- un aceount ol merger

Pursuant to the compusite Scheme of Arangement fur transter ot Business Undertshing (Reler note 32) 230

Balance at the end ol the year 37.43 3743
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounis are in INR millions, unless othenvise stated)

2

—_

Borrowings

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
1 April 2022

Non-Current

Sccured Rupee term loan from Kotak Bank™*
Less : Current maturitics of tcrm loan

120.52 275.64 307.86
(55.48) (55.48) -
65.04 220.16 307.86

* Rupee Term Loan from Kotak Bank @ 8% - 9% p.a. for purchasc of plant and machinery / cquipment / Fumiture and Fixtures/ Other Capex expenditure towards

Lounges/Transit Hotel located in Bangalore Airport.

Interest Rate with sccurity as under : First pari-passu charge on the current and movablc assets of the Company.

Repayments in 22 EQIs following the moratorium period and interest to be serviced on a monthly basis.

22 Leases liabilities

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
1 April 2022

Non current

Lcasc liabilitics (Refer note 50) 2,653.18 2,862,71 3,492.31
2,653.18 2,862.71 3492.31
23 Other financial liabilities - Non-current
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Deferred Income 3.89 5.75 7.78
Security deposit trom customers 84.44 71.73 77.50
88.33 77.50 85.28
24 Provisions
As at As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 April 2022

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits:

Gratuity (Refer note 42) 4325 38.02 41.00
43.25 38.02 41.00
25 Borrowings
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Current T
From Bank
Secured
Bank Overdraft # ; i b
Term Loan (Refer note 21) 55.48 55.48 -
55.48 55.48 0.04
# Overdraft facility carried interest of 8%-9% p.a. which was fully repaid by the Company in previous year.
26 Leases
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Current
Lcasc liabilitics (Refer note 50) 864.21 656.35 522.72
864.21 636.35 522.72
28 Other financial liabilities - Current
As at As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 April 2022

To parties other than related parties

Security deposits 19.21 24.34 12.13
Employee benefits payables 278.66 230.63 164.40

From related parties(Reler note 47)
_____.,R;;Lq!burscmcnl of cxpenses 22.72 17.45 22.64

£ ""-?‘:?‘\
/ ~ - Payabile i’b(‘\purchnse of Property Plant and Equipment
/4 Torak hpﬂd(:ding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises(Refer note 46) 19.99 3.62 0.77
'Tg[nl,au l;sﬁ'.nl.ﬁng due of Creditors other than micro caterprises and small nnlumiﬁ/ﬁ______::‘ 94.20 20.09 69.95
7 ol Lt

y } /54 ‘-{/"f“ﬂd 434.78 296.13 269.89
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions. unless othenvise stated)

Other current liabilities

Asat
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
1 April 2022

To parties other than related parties

Uncamed and deferred revenue 8.58 3148 64.70
Advance from customers 6.55 10.02 6.38
Corporate Social Responsibility Payable (Refer note 51) 12,61 11.98 -
Statutory liabilities* 135,50 117.31 65.15
163.24 170.79 136.23
*Statutory dues payables
- Tax deducted at source 55.08 34.89 27.60
- Goods & Scrvice Tax 52,92 59.89 21.77
- Value added tax/sales tax 7.36 5.52 341
- Provident fund 18.04 14.41 10.47
- Professional Tax 0.29 0.32 0.28
- Employee state insurance 1.81 2.28 1.62
135.50 117.31 65.15
Provisions
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Current

Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (Refer note 42)
Liability for compensated absences

Other Provision:
Provision for Disputed Rentals (Refer note below)

Provision for Disputed Rentals

23.29 14.82 7.51
23,31 15.80 8.28
200.32 200.32 200.32
246.92 230.94 216.11

During the FY 2019-20, the Company made a provision of INR 216.52 millions for disputed concession fees demanded by the Airport Authority of India (AAI) in
respect of the space occupied for outlets (Transit QSR) at Goa Airport. Subsequently during FY 2020-21 AAI had issued credit notes for additional amount of INR
12,13 Millions. Out of the aggregate demand of INR 228.65 millions, the Company paid INR 28.33 millions to AAI during FY 2020-21 resulting to closing provision

of [NR 200.32 millions,

During the FY 2023-24 arbitrator has passed the order in favour of the Company, stating that no concession fee was payable by the Company. AAI has filed an appeal
before the Hon. Delhi High Court under Scction 34 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 challenging the award and this is currently pending with Hon. High

Court for which next hearing is scheduled on 7 October 2024,

Movement in other provisions

Amount
Balancc at 1 April 2022 200.32
Provisions made/used during the year -
Balance at 31 March 2023 200.32
Provisions made/used during the year -
Balance at 31 March 2024 200.32

Current tax liabilities

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
1 April 2022

Provision for tax (net of advance tax)

36.39

93.04

20.91

36.39

93.04

20.91




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements

(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

27 Trade payables

Particulars

As at

As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

As at
1 April 2022

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises(Refer note 46) 175.08 108.20 37.53
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,408.80 1,559.27 1,024.43
2,583.88 1,667.47 1,061.96
Of the above, trade payables to related parties 24.08 10.00 -
For terms and conditions of trade payable owing to related parties (Refer note 47)
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date

Particul Unbilled d

articutars e — Not Due SesS A 1-2 Years 2-3 Years I St

year years

(i) MSME 45.55 - 106.80 19.37 0.26 3.10 175.08
(i1) Others 2,302.88 4.61 60.85 0.28 7.91 32.27 2,408.80
(ii1) Disputed — MSME - - = - < = "
(iv) Disputed - Others - - - - = : -
Total 2,348.43 4.61 167.65 19.65 8.17 35.37 2,583.88
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless othervise stated)

32 Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

A Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Salc of products and services

B Other operating revenues

Sales - Miscellaneous Services
Total revenue (A+B)

11,414.64 8.920.12
9.72 9.67
11.424.36 8,929.79

a)|Major products and service lines

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended

31 March 2023

Revenue from Contract with Customers

Revenue from Lounge services 6,059.61 4,912.98
Revenue from Travel QSR 5,004.35 3,694.07
Revenue from Management and other services 350.68 313.07
Total of sale of products and services 11,414.64 8,920.12

b) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Primary geographical markets

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Domcstic
Foreign

11,371.40
43.24

8.911.07
9.06

(ii) Timing of revenue recognition

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Products and services transferred at a point in time 11,063.96 8,607.05
Scrvices transferred over time 350.68 313.07
Revenue from contracts with customers 11.414.64 8,920.12

¢) Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

For the year cnded
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Revenue as per contracted price

Sale of products and scrvices 11,414.64 8,920.12
Total Revenue from contract with customers 11,414.64 8.920.12
d) Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Receivables, which are included in 'trade receivables' 970.12 1,056.68 463.92
Contract assets = " _
Contract liabilitics 15.12 46.34 112.72

The contract liabilities primarily related to the advance consideration received from the customer for which revenue is recognised at a point in time.
The amount of INR 46.34 millions included in contract liabilities at 31 March 2023 has been recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 March 2024,
The amount of INR 112,72 millions included in contract liabilities at 31 March 2022 has been recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 March 2023.

¢) Revenues from two custorners of the Company’s represented approximately INR 4362 11 millions (31 March 2023: INR 3446.64 millions) of the Company’s

total revenues.
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Other income

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Interest income under the effective interest method on:

- Bank deposit

- Loans and deposits

- Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income on income tax refund

Dividend from subsidiary

Gain on account of foreign exchange fluctuations

Net gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment

Gain on termination of lease arrangement (Refer note 61)

Net gain on sale of current investments

Net change in fair value of financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL
Doubtful debts/advance written back

Reversal of provision towards interest receivables (Refer note 48)
Miscellaneous income

Cost of materials consumed

Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory of materials at the end of the year
Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Food and beverages

Change in inventories of stock-in-trade

Opening inventory
Less: Closing inventory

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Expenses related to compensated absence
Gratuity (Refer note 42)

Blafl wellate eapeuses

o

73.49 55.21
105.97 45.54
31.05 26.43
221 3.07
84.00 63.00
10.39 8.74
3.66 3.33
49.07 "
249.69 65.82
- 74.44
11.32 29.66
80.64 <
30.48 32.18
731.97 407.42
65.62 34.32
2,095.47 1,623.52
(39.43) (65.62)
2.121.66 1,592.22
241.07 153.28
241.07 153.28
14.43 19.62
(43.15) (14.43)
(28.72) 5.19
1,507.35 1,063.74
115.14 85.86
8.43 7.52
21.93 21.32
170.85 121,V
1,823.70 1,300.14
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions. unless othenvise stated)

Finance costs

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
- Term loan

- Loans and intercorporate deposits

- Security deposits

[nterest on dues to micro and small enterprise

[nterest on taxes

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer note 4)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 5)

Other expenses

Power and fuel

Occupancy cost

Repairs and maintenance

Administrative and office expenses

Rates and taxes

House keeping and consumables

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional charges

Payment to auditors (Retfer note below)

Advertisement and sales promotion

Net change in fair value of financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL
Impairment loss on financial and non-financial assels
Corporate social responsibility expenses(refer note 51)
Royalty/ franchisee expenses

Impairment on Property, plant and equipment (Refer note 61)
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to Auditors (excluding taxes)

As auditors
Statutory audit

In other capacity
Out of Pocket Expenses
Certification Services
Others

17.29 27.70
3.60 7.93
2.97 7.08

55.75 28.65
8.76 7.89

392.27 390.60
480.64 469.85
251.74 177.24
791.68 605.43
2.30 3.95
1.045.72 786.62
216.35 184.30
2.308.85 1,592.00
287.83 220.20

75.56 51.53

86.03 38.69

14.87 4.60

41.83 28.17

72.60 68.46

27.70 2.33

50.45 29.90

11.00 -

55.63 63.10

19.53 12.89

104.87 74.12

45.74 -

113.05 58.86
3.531.89 2.429.17

26.95 1.59
0.05 0.36
0.70 0.35

- 0.05

27.70 2.35

R

Centr2i £ Y3 and
ferts 5 iving,
itesco 17 Parkd,
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements

(AUl amounts are in INR millions, unless othenvise stated)

Income tax

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

. Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Current tax expense
Current year
Changes in estimates related to prior years

Deferred tax (credit)/expense (Refer note 9)

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability
Tax (benefits) (Refer note 9)

. Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

Profit before tax
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 25.168%
Tax effect of
Non-deductible expenses
Recognition of previously unrecognised
deductible temporary differences
Tax incentives™®
Others
Total tax expense

826.66 656.61
8.87 (13.17)
835.53 643.44
(52.97) 23.46
(52.97) 23.46
(0.96) (3.13)
(0.96) (3.13)
2.940.37 2,600.74
740.03 654.55
54.52 27.58
8.87 -
(21.13) (15.86)
0.28 0.63
782.57 666.90

* The dividend received from the subsidiary is eligible for deduction u/s 80M of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

hor'n € vvng,
Nesco I7 Pored,




42

a)

b)

Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Employee benefits

Employee benefit liabilities

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Non-current

Defined benefit liability-Gratuity 43.25 38.02 41.00
43.25 38.02 41.00

Current

Defined benefit liability-Gratuity 23.29 14.82 7.51

Liability for compensated absences 2331 15.80 8.28
46.60 30.62 15.79
89.85 68.64 56.79

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit plan for gratuity which provides for a lumpsum payment to vested employees on departure i.e. at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service except
death while in employment. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at last drawn
eligible monthly salary for each completed year of service. The Company provides for the liability in its books of accounts based on an
actuarial valuation carried out by a qualified independent actuary.

The Gratuity scheme is not funded.
Benelit on normal retirement (i.e. 60 years): as per the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with Limit of INR 2.00 Million.
Benefit on death in service : Same as normal retirement benefit except that no vesting conditions apply.

Based on the actuarial valuation report obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts
recognized in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

Non-current 43,23 38.02 41.00
Current 23.29 14.82 7.51
Total 66.54 52.84 48.51

The above defined benefit plan exposes the Company to following risks:

Interest rate risk:

The defined benefit Liability calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. [f bond yields fall. the defined benefit Liability
will tend to increase.

Salary inflation risk:
Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the detined benefit Liability.

Demographic risk:

This is the risk of variability ol results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality. withdrawal. disability and
retirement. The effcet of these decrements on the defined benefit Liability is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless othenvise stated)

Employee benefits plan (continued)

Movement of defined benefit liability

As at
31 March 2024

As at As at
31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit liability

Balance at the beginning of the year 52.84 48.51 39.11
Adjustment to opening balance - - 0.14
Current service cost 18.79 18.82 15.28
Interest cost 3.15 2.51 1.78
Transfer in liability on transfer of employees 0.86 0.83 -
Transfer out liability on transfer of employees (2.44) (0.99) E
Benefits paid (2.84) (547 (4.44)
Actuarial gain / (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income
- demographic assumption (1.90) (7.63) 0.88
- experience adjustments 2.17) (1.38) 2.71)
- financial assumptions 0.26 (2.35) (1.53)
Balance at the end of the year 66.54 52.84 48.51
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Expense recognised in profit or loss

Current service cost 18.79 18.82
Interest cost 3.15 2.51
21.93 21.32
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain arising during the year (3.81) (11.36)
(3.81) (11.36)
Defined benefit Liabilities
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Actuarial assumptions

Mortality

Discount rate

Rate of increase in compensation

Expscted average remaining gervice (years)
Employee Attrition Rate(Past Service (PS)):

RL 1- 4

RL 5 and Below

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit Liability (years)

TALM (2012-2014) Ult
6.88% t0 6.93% 7.02% to 7.10%

8.00% 8.00%
011 1.67 1.06 2.08
PS:0to42: PS:0to42:
0%-27% 0%-28%
PS:0to42: PS:0to42:
38% to 72% 40% to 58%
1.34 t0 4.20 3.271t05.99

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on Indian Assured Lives Mortality (IALM) (2012-14) rates.
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c)

Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Employee benelits plan (continued)

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would
have aflected the defined benefit Liability by the amounts shown below:

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 66.84 70.98 51.20 54.62 45.73 50.26
Future salary growth rate (1% movement) 70.22 67.46 54.06 51.64 49.81 46.06

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. [n practice, this is
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
Liability to significant actuarial assumptions the same methods (present value of defined benefit Liability calculated with the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the

balance sheet.

Expected benefit payments
Undiscounted amount of expected benefit payments for next 10 years are as follows:

As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Expected Outgo first 25.90 14.82 7.11
Expected Outgo Second 14.77 12.04 7.05
Expected Outgo Third 9.84 8.44 7.24
Expected Outgo Fourth 7.18 6.71 6.32
Expected Outgo Filtth 5.20 3.10 5.96
Expected Outgo Six to Ten years 12.57 1291 18.12

Defined contribution plans

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Contribution to provident fund 115.14 85.86

115.14 85.86
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(Al amounts ure in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The calculation of EPS has been based on the following profit attributable (o equity shareholders and weighted-average number of equily shares outstanding,

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company 2,157.81 1,933.84
Weighted-average number of equity shares (basic) 38,72,926 38,72,926
Weighted-average number of equity shares (diluted) 38,72,926 38,72,926
Basic carnings per share having a face value of INR 10 cach 557.15 499.32
Diluted carnings per share having a face value of INR 10 cach 557.15 499.32
Commitments
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exccuted on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) 134.12 148.95 49.99
Contingent Liabilities
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

A. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis:
(1) Custom duty 0.17 0.17 1.27
(1) Sales tax * 2.70 2.70 2.70
(ii1) Interest expenses, license and concession fees demanded by Mumbai Intemational Airport Limited (MIAL) 57.55 34.49 21.50
B. Bank guarantees on behalf of the Company in Favor of:

Airport authorities. 418.93 373.73 343.94

Sales lax authorities 1.30 1.60 ) 1.30
m...\n\..m,._w_m.;%_.v...,ﬂ,suz given corporate guarantee to banks in respect of bank guarantee and working capital facility ol &

il Telloke Subsidiary agl 20508, i}
viided u & Subsidiary

X %3

if e

' Vi =y
..,..1. Ihe Compuny i received notice for demand from Sales tax (Maharashtra) for F.Y. 2012-13, on 9 May 2017 (order dated 30 March 2017), Company has filed stay

agaimst the
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

47  Related parties

(A) List of Related Parties

Parties where control exists :
Holding company
SNVK Hospitality & Management Private Limited

Names of investors having substantial voting power of reporting enterprise:
SSP Asia Pacific Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries

Travel Food Services Global Private Limited, Mauritius

TES Yamuna Airport Services Private Limited (fk.a. TFS (R&R Works) Private Limited)
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

Semuoling Kitchens Private Limited (w.e.f 30 June 2022)

QMT Lifestyle and Technology Services Private Limited (w.c.£ 10 November 2023)

Joint venture
GMR Hospitality Limited (w.e.f 25 July 2022)

Associates

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited

Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Tabemono Truc Aromas Privatc Limited (w.c.f. 21 August 2023)

Gourmet Foods LLC (Associate of subsidiary company - Travel Food Services Global Private Limited)

Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Varun Kapur - Director
Karan Kapur - Director

Entities in which Key Management Personnel are having significant influence/ control
Travel Food Works Private Limited

Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Deluxe Caterers Private Limited

Global Kitchens (KG) LLP

Global Kitchens (Kolkata) LLP

The Irish Housc Food and Beverages Private Limited
Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited
Everest Caterers LLP

Global Kitchens (Bengaluru) LLP

Global Kitchens F&B LLP

SSP Financing UK Limited

Select Service Partner UK Limited
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statcments
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless othenvise stated)

Related parties (continued)

(B) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Revenue from Management and other services

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited
Sclect Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd
Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Interest income

Sclect Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd
Semolina Kitchens Private Limited
Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Lease payments
Everest Caterers LLP
Travel Food Works Private Limited

Purchase of goods

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited
Semolina Kitchens Private Limited

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited
Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Global Kitchens (Bengaluru) LLP

Revenue from operations

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited
Semolina Kitchens Private Limited

GMR Hospitality Limited

Global Kitchens (Kolkata) LLP

Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited

GMR Hospitality Limited

Semolina Kitchens Private Limited

Investment in Subsidiaries

Semolina Kitchens Private Limited

TFS Yamuna Airport Services Private Limited (fk.a. TFS (R&R Works) Privatc Limited)
QMT Lifestyle and Technology Services Private Limited

Investment in Associate
Tabemono Truc Aromas Private Limited

Investment in Joint Venture
GMR Hospitality Limited

Dividend from subsidiary
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

Inter-corporate deposit given
Semolina Kitchens Private Limited
Travel Retail Services Private Limited

30.01
43.24
22.85

59.90
17.02
29.06

31.37
6.45

1.10
0.53
34.22
65.03
26.88

0.10

0.25

81.00

84.00

65.09
42.50

2527
9.06
23.97

21.38
2.61
21.55

33.50

0.00
10.35

16.88

2.39
0.58
232
0.78
0.16

1.47
0.01

1.00
42.84

24.30
63.00

79.91
87.50

.
wel Ay
o
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR mnillions, unless otherwise stated)
47  Related parties (continued)
(B) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year (continued)

Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured loan given
Select Service Partner Mulaysia Sdn Bhd 357.10 534.78
Provision for doubtful interest receivable
Global Kitchens Private Limited = 1.75
Sundry balances written off
Cilobal Kitchens Private Limited - 1.75
Gilobal Kitchens (KG) LLP - 0.30
Rcecovery of expenses
Travel Food Services Global Private Limited - -
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 0.92 15.02
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd 0.87 .24
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 0.66 -
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited - 0.79
Semolina Kitchens Private Limited 9.16 0.15
GMR Hospitality Limited 1.57 22.47
Travel Food Works Private Limited 3.40
QMT Lifestyle and Technology Services Private Limited 0.03 -
Rcimbursement of expenses
Deluxe Caterers Private Limited 4.88 1.93
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 427 -
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 0.83 1.04
jation {Sclect Service Partner Asia Pacific Limited 0.00 -
Select Service Partner UK Limited 0.00
Everest Caterers LLP 0.23 -
Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited 5.51 2.06
Global Kitchens (Kolkata) LLP - 0.30
SSP Financing UK Limited 0.16 -
Varun Kapur 1.15 2.04
The Irish House Food and Beverages Private Limited 1.06 0.03
Semolina Kitchens Private Limited 6.81 =
GMR Hospitality Limited 0.04 -
Acquisition of business entity
TFS Yamuna Airport Services Private Limited (fk.a. TFS (R&R Works) Private Limited) 0.10 -
Royalty/ franchisee expense
The Irish House Food and Beverages Private Limited 4.08 343
Deluxe Caterers Private Limited 6.65 0.01
Security deposit given
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 0.70 -
Travel Food Works Private Limited 11.00 "
Everest Caterers LLP 50.00 -
Guarantees given on behalf of companies
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 70.00 205.00
TFS Yamuna Airport Services Private Limited (f.k.a, TFS (R&R Works) Private Limited) 135.00 -
Provision for doubtful interest reccivable 18.32
Travel Retail Services Private Limited ) '
Reversal of provision of interest
Travel Retail Services Private Limited -




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

47 Related partics (continued)
(C) Balances with related parties

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
1 April 2022

Deposits given
Everest Caterers LLP
Travél Food Works Private Limited

Loan given
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd
Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Interest reccivable on loan

Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Global Kitchens Private Limited

TFS Gate Onboard Sales and Services Private Limited

Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Semolina Kitchens Private Limited

Travel Food Services (R&R works) Private limited (formerly known as Travel
Food Service (Delhi) Private Limited)

Intercorporate deposit given

Semoling Kitchens Private Limited

Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Travel Food Services (R&R works) Private limited (formerly known as Travel
Food Service (Delhi) Private Limited)

Loss allowance (on interest receivable)
Travel Retail Services Private Limited
Global Kitchens Private Limited

Trade Receivables

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited
Travel Retail Scrvices Private Limited

Global Kitchens F&B LLP

Global Kitchens (Kolkata) LLP

Semolina Kitchens Private Limited

Trade Payables

Semolina Kitchens Private Limited

Global Kitchens (Bengaluru) LLP

Travel Retail Services Private Limited

Travel Food Services (Delhi T3) Private Limited
Deluxe Caterers Private Limited

Management fees receivable
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd

61.30
11.00

904.06
236.46

107.86

81.00
17.73

145.00
130.00

7.40

4.88

0.47
14.56
2.40
6.64

8.36
49.72

11.30

542.84
236.46

81.71

21.36
2.41

79.91
87.50

80.64

1.02
2291
0.23

1.08

11.30

236.46

1.75

0.31
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Travel Food Services Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements

(Al amounts are in INR nillions, unless otherwise stated)
47 Related partices (continued)
(C) Balances with related parties (continued)

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 |31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Recavery of expenses

TFS Yamuna Private Limited ([la. TFS (R&R Warks) Privite Limited) 10.15 . -
Mumba Airport Lounge Services Proivate Limated 0.57 0.01 0.71
Select Serviee Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd 1.24 1.24 0.08
SSP Financmy UK Limited 1.83 1.83 1.83
GMR Hospitality Limited = 2.10 =
Travel Food Works Private Limited 1.39 0.01 -
Travel Retail Services Private Limited = 0.02 16.88
Deluxe Caterers Private Limited - 0.0] 1.26
Global Kitchens (Kolkata) LLP - 0.04 -
Global Kitchens (KG) LLP - - 0.30
The Irish House Food and Beverages Private Limited - 1.05 0.78
Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited 0.07 0.07 0.42
Evcerest Catercrs LLP 0.01 0.01 -
SNVK Hospitality & Management Private Limited 0.00 0.06 0.06
Global Kitchens F&B LLP 0.23 - -
TFS Gate onboard Sales and Services Private Limited - - 0.66
Semolina Kitchens Private Limited 0.14 0.03

Grand Cuisines Banquets Private Limited - - 0.01

Recovery of expenses payable

Grand Cuisines Banquets Private Limited - - 0.16
Everest Caterers LLP - - 3.57
SSP Asia Pacific Holdings Limited 0.06 0.06 0.06
SSP Financing UK Limited 11.77 11.61 11.46
Select Service Partner UK Limited 2.58 2.22 343
Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Limited 001 - -
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 2,07 3.14 350
The Irish Housc Food and Beverages Private Limited - 033 0.23
Deluxe Caterers Private Limited - - 0.14
TFS Yamuna Airport Services Private Limited (fk.a. TFS (R&R Works) Private

Limited) (Refer note 52 Slump sale transaction) 0.10 0.10 0.10
Kapco Banquets and Catering Private Limited 5.09 -

Global Kitchen (Bengaluru) LLP 1.05 - -

Guarantees given on behalf of Companies
Travel Retail Services Private Limited 70.00 205.00 -
TFS Yamuna Airport Services Private Limited (fk.a, TFS (R&R Works) Private Limited) 135.00 - -

D Transactions entered into with related parties during the year were in the ordinary course of business and at arms' length basis, to be settled in cash in normal
operating cycle of the Company. All the balances of related parties are unsecured.

There are no transactions with KMP during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 other than disclosed above.
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(ii)

a)

b)

(iii)

(iv)

(\)

Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 116

Adoption and transition to Ind AS
With effect from | April 2022, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” to its leases using the on a lease-by-lease basis with the option to measure
the right-of-use asset as if the Standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

at the datc of initial application;

The Company has applied this standard to concession contracts and leaschold premises to evaluate whether these contracts contains lease or not.
Based on evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, the Company has evaluated such arrangements to be leases. Under this standard,
all lease contracts, with limited exceptions, are recognised in the financial statements by way of right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities.

When measuring lease liabilities, the weighted average discount rate used to calculate the lease liability under Ind AS 116 was 10%-11.5%

There had been no impact on the retained eamnings on initial application of the standard.

The Company recognises a lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental

borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

The Company has elected to apply the following practical expedients available under Ind AS 116:

Short term leases - The Company has applied the practical expedient to classify leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of

initial application of Ind AS 116 as short-term leases.

Low value leases - As part of transition, the Company has availed the practical expedient of not to apply the recognition requirements of Ind AS 116

to low value leases for recognition of assets and liabilities related to leases. There are no low value leases.

Payments recognised as an expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
The expense relating to variable lease payments and short term not included in the measurement of lease 2,308.85 1,592.00
liabilities
Total 2,308.85 1,592.00
Movement in lease liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year 3,519.08 4,015.06
Additions 800.47 9.62
Interest on lease liabilities accrued during the year 392.20 390.60
Payment of lease liabilities (1,194.36) (896.22)
Balance as at end of the year 3.517.39 3,519.06
Current 864.21 656.35
Non-current 2,653.18 2,862.71
Contractual Maturities of Lease Liabilities
The details regarding contractual maturities of lease liabilities for leases on an undiscounted basis are as follows:
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Less than one year 1,183.86 1,177.81 913.54
Later than one year and not later than five years 2.943.84 3,981.62 4,909.62
More than five years 58.90 204.98 454.79
Total undiscounted lease payments 4,186.60 5,364.41 6,277.95
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

51 Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

2) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year
¢) Amount spent during the year ended on 31 March 2024:

1) Construction / acquisition of any assct
ii) On purposes other than (i) above

d) Amount spent during the year ended on 31 March 2023:

i) Construction / acquisition of any asset
ii) On purposes other than (i) above

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
19.53 12.89
19.53 12.89
In cash Yet to be paid in [Total
cash
15.91 16.51 32.42
In cash Yet to be paid in |Total
cash
- 12.89 12.89

Nature of activities

Promotion of ed

ucation;

including preventive healtheare

promotion  of healtheare|

¢) Details of unspent Liabilities

In case of section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
Opening balance as | Amount required to Amount spent during the year Closing balance as at 31 March
at 01 April 2023 be spent during the 2024
With In year From Company's bank | From With Company | In Separate
Company |separate account separate CSR unspent
CSR CSR unspen| account
unspent account
account
11.98 0.91 19.53 3.02 12.89 16.51 -
In case of section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
Opening balance as | Amount required to Amount spent during the year Closing balance as at 31 March
at 01 April 2022 be spent during the 2023
With In year From Company's bank | From With Company | In separate CSR
Company [separate account separate unspent account
CSR CSR unspent
unspent account
account
- - 12.89 11.98 0.91

Note: The Company has made a payment of CSR liability before the due date.
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone finaacial statements
(A amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Business Combination - Acquisition of business undertaking of a Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Pursuant 1o o stump sale agreement dated 26 February, 2024 entered into by the Company with its wholly subsidiary. TFS Yamuna Aimport
Services Private Limited (formerly known as TFS (R&R Works) Private Limited) thereinatter referred to as “Transteror Compiny o1 TFSYASPL).
the Business Undertaking of TESYASPL was transterred to the Company on a going concern and slump sale basis effective | March 2024

Business Undertaking shutt mean and include the entire business of developing and operating food & beverage outlets including food courts at
highways in India conducted by the Transferor Company and granting of rights to third parties for des eloping. and operating electric vehicle
charging space at highways in India and includes all the existing assets (tangible and intangible) and Liabilies and related matters in connection
with the business operations by the Transferor Company. together with ail rights. title, interest and obligations in relation to the Contracts. Trade
Receivables and Trade Payables, Employees' Liabilities, Intangible Assets. Current Assets. Capital Work in Progress. Moveable Properties and
Records

The Transleror Company (and its Business Undertaking) is ultimately controlled by the same entity (viz. the Company) both betore and after the
business combination. therefore the said transaction is a common control transaction and has been accounted under pooling of interest method 1n
accordance with Appendix C of Ind AS 103 — Business Combinations . Accordingly. the comparative financial in formation of the Company for the
year ended 31 March, 2023 as also the opening balance sheet as at | April 2022 included in these standalone linancial statements along with the
notes to accounts and diselosure mcludes the etfect of the transfer

The impact of the merger on the financial statements of the Company is as under

Accounting treatment of the arrangement

The financial tnformation in the financial statements in respect of prior periods should be restated as if the business combination had occurred from
the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespecuve of the actual date of the combination. Accordingly. business
combinations is accounted with effect from | April 2022,

Particulars Balance as on
01 April 2022

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 1571
Right of use assets 0.&8
Other Intangible assets 0.¥3
Financial assets

(1) Investments 4284

(11) Other financial assets 409
Other tax asaets (nel) 038
Other non-current assets 092

Current assets

Inventories 1.04
Financial assets

(1) Investments 1106
(tit Trade receivables 223
(i1i) Cash and cash equrvalents 3.06
{iv) Other financial assets 006
Other current assets 103
Total assets (\) 84.15
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Finunciol liabilities

(1) Lcase liabilitics 006
(1) Other fimancial liabilities 3200
Provisions 0.22

Current liabilities
Financial liabihities

Lease liabilities 0.06
Trade payables

() Towl outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises: and 0.01

(1) Toral outstanding dues ol creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpiises in

Other linancial habilitics 42.79
Other current liabilities 083
Total liabilities (B} 81.69
Total carrving value of net identifiable assets acquired (A-B) 2.46
Less: purchase consideration {0.10)
Capital Reserye on account of composite scheme of arrangement 2.36

Wl
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[ravel Food Services Private Limited
Standalone Balunce Sheet as at 31 March 2024

< g e ENR e aniess otherse stared)

By
I pursuant to scheme ol arangentent and amalgamatin (the “Scheme'y under Seetons 230-232 and Seelion 66 read with Seeuon 52 ol the Compacies Ack 2003 (the “Act). and also read with
Nattonal Company Law Tribunal ¢ Procedure for seduction o share capital of the company) Rules. 2016 entered mto between the Company and itz whaolly awned subsidiaries BLR Lounge Services
Private Limnted (BLR). Travel Food Services Chennar Private Lmuted ¢ TESCPLY. Travel Food Services Kolkata Private Limited ( TFSKPLY (rogether referred w as “Transteror Companies') which
was sanctioned by National Company Lasw Tribunal ONCLTV by virtue of s Order dated 28 August 20240 the trnsleror companies have merged nto the Company ona going coneern busis trom the

iness Comhination - Merger of W holly Owned Subsidiaries

appomted date speetficd m the seheme tes T Apnd 20220 The Scheme became elfective from 28 August 2024
These subsidianies are n engaged m the busimess ol developme. operatng and mamtaming food and beserage outlets and lounges atdomestic and intemanonal termnals at aiports i Inda

The arrangement has been accounted i the books ol account of the Compans i accordance with Appendix C ol Indt AS 103 and considerng that the transleror companies are ultimately controlled by

the same entity bueth before and after the business combimation. the ~aid ansaetion s a commoen control ransaction and Nds been accounted unde pooling ol interest method - Accordgly, the
comparative fimancial information ol the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2023 as also the opening balunce sheet as at b Apnl 2022 mcluded w these standalone Tinancial statements along

with the notes Lo aceounts and disclosure meludes the elleet ol the merger

s provided 1 the Scheme. the assets and labriities of Transferor Compaies Tave been recorded m the standalone financial statements of the Company al Iheil carrsig amounts as appesting the
standalone finanessl slatements of the respective Transferor Companies and the dilTerence between the canying value of share capital of the Transteror Companies und investmentin the Transferon
Companies (Le. the amount of book salue of invesiments over the share eapital) recorded m the buoks ol the Company has adjusted agamst retaimed carmings (i case of debit) and aganst Capual

Reserve (i case ut eredivy

Further, the Scheme provides that debit balance of R+ 10490 million i retamed carmings taceumulated 1o-<es) ol the Campany before the merger o be offset against the eredit balanee of the
Seeurtties Premium Account of the Company. The Scheme vrverrides provissuns of Seetion 3201 o the At which states that utihisation of the secutities premium aceount for any vther pumose
fother than those s permisted by Section 32(21) would attraet the provisons of Section 66 of the Act reliting to reduction of share capsial. However, the reduction of the secuzities premium aceount

whieh s approsed to be affected as an mtegral part of the Scheme approved by the NCLT would be in compliance with the requirements of the Act

Peta] of adiusiment of assets and Habihties along with teserves of erstwhile TTSCPL, TFSKPL and BLR and consequential adjustment 1o Capital Reserves and Retamed Earnings as on the appomnied

and etfectne date of 1 Apnl 2022

TFSCPL TFKPL BLR

Ind AS halance Ind AS halunce Ind AS balunce

As al b April 2022 As at | April 2022 As at | April 2022 Total
Nun current assels
Properts, plant and equipment 99.91 9793 479067 677.51
Capital Work-m-progiess oy - - 225
Righl-ol-use assely 1.092 41 619 a7 124.89 1.836.36
Other Intangible assels 160 028 023 2.2}
Froancial assels
(i Loans 22646
(1) Other financnal assets 10113 60 30 (S 21
Delerred 1ax assets (nel 179.75 1S a2 1003 29542
O1her ts assets (et 2043 Lion 17.03 49.10
O1her non-current assets 013 IR 6.03 7.21
Current assets
[y entories 1526 141,710 ]335 34.48
Frinenal assets -
(1) Insestiients 117622 X935 33 [[IIRIR] 2,171.58
o1 Trade recenables 207 3909 Joy ()5 348.491
(ur) Cash and cash equivalents IN |3 1N 0¥ 2 38.93
¢iv) Bank balances ather than (i) above 400 00 40240 - 502,40
(v) Other lnanctal assets 2544 S 37.30
Other current assets bl 1795 44.62
L'otal assets () 347314 1.311.33 6,819.97
Non-current liahilities
FFaiancial habihaes
(i) Borowings . - 487 0K 487.08
{10 Lease labihites 145199 N12ul 1226 2.286.20
(i Other hnane:al tabibtes 2320 224 - 46.10
Provisions Ay 9 8% 330 20.81
Current liahilities
Fmane al Labi
1) Borrow mgs . - - -
i L e e labilies joRn= [RET 9,35 34400
(i Frade payables
(ay Tutal oulstandimyg dues of micro enterprises and simall enterprises:and 4 22.07
(b Total sutsanding dues ol creditors other than micro cnterpuses and small enterpr ses N1 43 539.62
(iv) Other nanciad labtiives 9316 18
Orher cunrent habiliies 1437 1048
Provisions .62 7.88
Current Tax Liabilines tnet) Qnn 602 9.76
Orher eyuty i269 0] 347 2.396.24
Lotal Liabilities and Reserves (B) 341409 801.53 0.470.89
Fotal carrving sulue of net assets acquired (A-B) 39,03 133.97 349.08
Share capital of Transferor Companies (C) 56.06 23397 349.08
1.ess: [nvestment cancellation (1) (03.37) (198.90) 1367.611)
I'he amount of buok value of investuients over the share capital (46.08) (7.51) 33.07 (15
Adjusted against the Retained earnings 46.08 7.51
Capital reserve on Amalgamation - -

- BN
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I'ravel Food Services Privale Limited
Notes to the standalune financiol statements
(M amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Disclosure pursuant (o section 186(4) ol the Companics Act, 2013

As at 31 March 2024

for bank guarntes and

working capitil Facilily,

Nature of transaction (loan given/investinent made/guarantee Purpose for which the Interest p.a Balance us at Given Repuyment/ Forex gain/(loss) |Balance as at Maximwin outstanding
loan/guarantee is proposed 1 April 2023 Revoked 31 March 2024 during the year
to be utilised by the
recipient
Semolina Kitchens Private Limited Working Capital and Others (12 25¢ 7991 65.09 - - 145 00
Sclect Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd Working Capitat and Others |Tranche 1- 7% 542,84 34813 - 1308 904 05
Tranche 2 - 3 month
SOFR +3.5%
Meghalaya Holels Private Limited* Others 9.50% 60.00 - - 60.00 00.00
Travel Retrail Services Private Limited Capital expenses, working 7-9 304 32396 4251 - . 36647 36647
capital management and
other operational expenses
Travel Retail Services Private Limited Corporate Guarantee given 205.00 - (135.00) . 7i4 203.00
for bank guarantee and
working capital facility
Axal 31 March 2023
ature of transaction (loun given/investment made/guarantee given) Turpuose Tor which the Interest pa Balunee as at Repayment/RevolForex gain/(loss) [Balance as at Maximum outstanding
Tean/guarantee s proposed 1 April 2022 Ked 31 March 2023 during the year
o be utilised by the
recipient
Semolina Kitchens Private Limited Working Capital and Othas [12.25% - 79.91 - 7991 7991
Select Service Partner Malaysia Sdn Bhd Working Capital and Others | Tranche 1 - 74 - 53484 - KA 542 84 54284
Tranche 2 - 3 month
SOFR +3.5%
Mcghalaya Hotels Private Limited Others 9.50% - 60.00 - - 60 .00 60,00
Travel Retail Serviees Private Limited Capital expenses, winking 7-9.30% 23647 8749 - - 32396 32396
camital managenment und
wihar pperational expenses
Travel Retail Services Private Limited Corporate Guanimiee given . 205.00 = 205.00 20500

casc of a loan of INR 60 million given 1o Meghalaya [Hotels Private Limited. which had fallen duc for repayment during the year has remuained unpaid. During the year. the Company has made provision for the entire loan of INR 60 million (Refer Note 7())

*In
# Secuved Overmight Fianemg Rate (SOFR)
Refer note 6 for particulins of investinents

Segment reporting

I'he Company mainly derive revenue from Pavel QSR oullets and Lounge ser

ey In addition, the Company also derive revenue from management and other services. The Company has disclosed products and service lines in "Note 32 - Resenue lom aperations” because

of the nature and expected infrequency of the events giving rise to them, 0 as (o allow users 10 understand better: This products and service lines is only one operaling segment, whose operating results are regulatly reviewed by the entily’s Board of Ditectors ("Chiel
Operating Decision Maker') 1o make decisions about resources Lo be allocated and asscss its performance. Hence, there are no separate reportable segments, as required by the Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segment”™ The Company primarily operates within India

Investment in Subsidinry

The Company has an myvestnent of INR 8% 46 Millions in equity shares of its wholly owned subsidiary, TES Yamuna Airport Services Private Limited (formally known as TFS (R&R Works) Private Limited) (“the Subsidiary Compuny™) as at 31 March 2024 The Company
belieyes that the Subsidiary Company will be able 1o geneate positive cash flows from the new contracls awarded to it and will be able to recoup all its past losses m the near future: Tlowever, as at 31 March 2024, the Subsidiary Company has not commenced ils business
operations for the new contiacts. Accordingly, carying value of investment in the Subsidiary Company is dependent upon the successful commercialization by (he Subsidiary Company of the outlets as per new contiuct based on the future plans and initiatives laken by the

management of the Subsidiary Company,

Transfer pricing

o
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(Al amouns are in INR millions, unless othervise stated)

Explanation of transition to Ind AS

opening batunce sheet was prepared as at | April 2022, the Company’s dale of transition to Ind AS. For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March, 2023, the Company prepared its Standalone finan
the accounting standards notilied under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with Rule 3(2) of the Companices (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 (*Indian GAADP” or *Previous GAA>),

I'he accounting policies set out in Note 2 and 2B have been applied in preparing these Standalone finan

I April 2022

I statements for the yewr ended 31 March 2024 including the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the opening

Isition

d AS balance sheet on the date ol

nee sheet as at | >_:__ 2022 and in presenti
with previous GAAP. This note exp
ceted the Company”

g the comparative

information for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in Standalone financial statements prepared
s the principal La._ci_:r_:u made by the Company in restating its Standalone linanci rom previous GAAP 10 Ind AS has
Wl position, linancial performance and

I statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAP, and how the transition

Sctout below are the applicable mandatory exceptions applied and the optional exemptions in the transition ftom previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Mandatory exceptions
(u) L
As per Ind As 101, an entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of nansition to Ind AS at the end of the comparative period presented in the entity’s first Ind AS financial statements, as the cas may be, should be consistent with

imules

timates made for the same date in accordance with the previous GAAP unless there is objective evidence thal those estimates were in error. However, the estimates should be adjusted 1o reflect any differences in accounting policies.

As per Ind AS 101, where application ol Ind AS requites an entity to make certain estimates that were not re

red under previous GAAP, those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the date of transition (for prepuring
opening Ind AS balunce sheet) or at the end ol the comparative period (for presenting comparative information as per Ind AS).

The Company's estimates under Ind AS are consistent with the above requirement. Key estimates considered in preparation of the standalone financial statements that were nol required under the previous GAAP are listed below:
nancial instruments at FVTPLL
nancial asscts based on expected credit loss model

I <,__:.:_c= ol

- Determination of the discounted value for nancial instruments cartied at amortised cost.

(b) De-recognition of financial assets und liabilitics

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopier to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for ransactions occurring on or aller the date of transition (o Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a [irst-time adopter to apply the de-
recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the entity’s choosing, provided that the information needed 10 apply Ind AS 109 o linancial assets and financial liabilities derecognisec
obtained at the time ol initiully accounting for those transactions, The Company has elected to apply the derecognition principles of Ind AS 109 retrospectively as reliable information was a
transactions

a result ol past ttansactions was

able at the time of initially accounting for these

(¢} Classitication and measurement of tfinancial assets
Impai

nent of (inancial as:

cts as setout in Ind AS 101, an entity shall apply the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively if it is does not enta
retrospectively in conlormity with Ind AS 109
Ind AS 101 requires an enlily (0 us

wenls of financial asse

any unduc cost ot cllort. The Company ha ed imp

sess classilication ol financial assets on the

of facts and circumstances eaisting as on the date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement financial assels accounted at amortised cost based on
etrospective application is impracticable

lacts and circumstances existing at the da ol transition i
Accordingly, the Company has determined the classilication ol financial assets based on lacts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition. Measurement of the financial as
except where the same is impracticable.

ets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively

Optional exemptions availed o
:E.:\:.\:_ M.unul..._r pruperty. plant and equipment and intangible assets { -

Il o __r._._w.__n& ' r..wt_ o measure all its property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts ut the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition 10 Ind AS [
_\.. ..m.  Cost Tor :_:..r:_:..._, in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates - :
__ C.::.__ my hus r._rr_rn_ o measure all its Investuments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associales at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS.

M,_A_ _1,__% given belowi _n:m_,r,..: combination refer to composite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation (note 52) and Slump sale transaction (note 51) after elimination of intercompany transactions and balance ol piit
1k [ H
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Explanation of transition to Ind AS (Continued)

Travel Food Services Private Limited

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars Note to | 31 March 2023 | Adjustment on Business 31 March 2023
first time Previous transfer to Ind combination |[Ind AS Amounts
adoption | GAAP Amounts AS

Income
Revenue from operations 2,325.56 - 6.604.23 8,929.79
Other income d&c 152.87 15.80 238.75 407.42
Total income 2,478.43 15.80 6,842.98 9.337.21
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 264.48 1.327.74 1,592.22
Purchase of stock-in-trade 76.73 - 76.55 153.28
Change in inventories of stock-in-trade 3.92 - 1.26 5.19
Employee benefits expenses b 466.37 4.92 828.85 1,300.14
Finance costs aand g 31.66 144.21 293.98 469.85
Depreciation and amortisation a&f 46.91 236.38 503.33 786.62
Other expenses a 1,150.92 (321.04) 1,599.29 2,429.17
Total expenses 2,041.00 64.48 4.631.00 6.736.48
T
Profit before tax 437.43 (48.68) 2.211.97 2.600.73
Tax expense:
Current tax 70.85 - 572.59 643.44
Deferred tax h (173.00) 190.91 5.55 23.46
Total tax expense (102.16) 190.91 578.14 666.90
Profit for the year 539.59 (239.59) 1.633.83 1.933.83
Other comprehensive income, net of tax b - 3.68 4.55 8.23
Total comprehensive income 539.59 (235.91) 1.638.39 1.942.06
Reconciliation of statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars Year ended 31 March 2023
Previous GAAP| Adjustment on Business Ind AS
transition to Ind| Combination
AS
Net cash flow from operating activities 484.45 (321.04) 2,612,20 2,775.61
Net cash flow from investing activities (899.84) - (717.21) (1,617.05)
Net cash flow from financing activities 437.04 321.04 (1,729.28) (971.20)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 21.65 - 165.71 187.36
Cash and cash equivalent as at 01 April 2022 9.84 - 41.99 51.83
Cash and cash equivalent as at 31 March 2023 31.49 - 207.70 239.19
Zoces &
e N
fo Ko "1
|3 &




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless othernvise stated)

39 Explanation of transition to Ind AS (Continued)
a Lease arrangement
Under Previous GAAP. lessee classitied a lease as operating or finance lease based on whether or not the lease transferred substantially all risk
and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset. Operating leases were expensed in the statement of protit and loss. Effective 1 April 2022,
the Company adopted [nd AS 116 — Leases which sets out the principles for the recognition. measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.
The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the full retrospective method. The cumulative adjustment on application of this Standard has been
adjusted to retained earnings as at 1 April 2022.

In terms of the practical expedient on initial application permitted by Ind AS 116, the Company has applied the exemption not to recognize right-
of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term and leases of low value assets on the date of initial application.

Pursuant to application of Ind AS 116, for operating leases other than those for which the Company has opted for shori-term leases and low
value assets exemption. right-of-use assets and lease liabilities is recognised. Right-of-use asset is amortised over the lease term or useful life of
the leased assets. whichever is lower and lease liabilities is subsequently measured at amortised cost and interest expense is recognised.

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient of not assessing the rent concessions as a lease moditication. as per MCA
notification dated 24 July 2020 on Ind AS 116 for all rent concessions which are granted due to COVID - 19 pandemic. As per
requirements of MCA notification, rent concessions confirmed for the year ended 31 March 2022 of INR 174,79 millions have been considered
as other income and included in retained eamings as at | April 2022

Year ended

Statement of profit and loss 31 March 2023
Depreciation and amortisation expense 236.38
Finance costs 142.21
Occupancy cost (321.04)
Adjustment before income tax 57.55

As at As at
Balance Sheet 31 March2023| 1 April 2022
Right-ot-usc asscts 1.052.33 1.260.00
Lease liabilities (1.211.94) (1.384.63)
Net effect (159.61) (124.65)
Related tax effect 40.17 31.37
Adjustment to retained earnings (119.44) (93.28)

b Remecasurement of defined benefit plan Liabilities:
Under Ind AS. remcasurements i.c. actuarial gains and tosses on the net defined benefit liability arc recognised in other comprehensive income
instead of statement of profit and loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year. There is no impact on the total equity

¢ Impairment of financial assets:
Under previous GAAP, the allowance for the receivables turned doubtful was made based on the assessment on case (o case basis. Under Ind
AS, the same is required to be computed as per the impairment principles lead out in Ind AS 109-Financial Instruments, which prescribe the
expected credit loss model (ECL Model) for the same. On applying the ECL Model, there is no reduction or incremental provision. Hence, there
1S no 1nipact on equuty.

d Fair valuation of investments subsequently measured under FVTPL:
Under the previous GAAP, investment in mutual funds were classitied as current investments based on the intended holding period and
realisabilitv. Such current investments were carried at lower of cost or tair value. Under Ind AS, this investments are required to be measuved at
fair value. The resulting fair value changes of these investments have been recognised in equity as at the date of transition and subsequently in
the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 upon the subsequent measurement category for the investments.

e  Amortised cost accounting tor security deposits:

Under Previous GAAP, interest free security deposits were recognised at their transaction value, Under Ind AS, these deposits are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost at the end of cach reporting period. Accordingly. the difference between
transaction value and fair value of these deposils is recognised as Right-of-use assels or Prepaid expense and is amortised oyertidgianay of the
lease term or agreement of deposit. respectively. Further. interest is accrued on present value of these security deposils. ,’({‘: & G D,

4
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

59 Explanation of transition to Ind AS (Continued)
f Business combinations
The Company elected to apply Ind AS 103 retrospectively to business combinations that occurred on or after | April 2022.
In addition, and as a condition under Ind AS 101 for availing this exemption, goodwill relating business combinations that occurred prior to 1
April 2022 was tested for impairment even though no impairment indicators were identified. It was determined that no impairment existed at the

date of transition.

The impact arising from the change as follows:
The business combination is accounted for as if the business combination had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period

presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established; for this purpose, comparatives are revised. The assets and
liabilities acquired are recognised at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves is preserved, and they appear in the standalone
financial statements of the Company in the same form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the acquired entity. The
difference, if any, between the consideration and the amount of share capital of the acquired entity is transferred to capital reserve

g Effective Interest Rate(EIR) adjustments of transaction cost integral to the sourcing of loans /borrowings:
Under previous GAAP, all the transaction costs integral to sourcing of loans/borrowings were recognised upfront on a accrual basis. Under Ind
AS, this transactions costs related to sourcing of loans/borrowings are amortised using EIR and unamortised portion is adjusted in equity as at
transition date and subsequently in Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

h Income tax
The above changes (decreased)/Increase the deferred tax assets as follows based on a tax rate of 25.168 percent:

As at As at

31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Lease arrangement 40.17 31.37
Fair valuation of investments (0.35) (0.28)
Other financial assets-security deposit 20.34 18.49
Recognition of previously unrecognised deductible temporary (6.21) 196.51

differences

Increase in deferred tax assets 53.95 246.10

i  Regrouping and reclassifications:
Appropriate regrouping/reclassification adjustments have been carried out for previous GAAP numbers, wherever required, by reclassification of
the corresponding items of income, expenses, assets and liabilities, in order to bring them in line with the requirements of the Ind AS.




Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

60 Other Statutory Information

6

—

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property,

(i1) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous
year

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

(v) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) No funds have been received by the from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, scarch or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(viii) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current
assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

(ix) Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(x) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company had entered into agreement to provide food and beverages outlet services at Okhla Metro for the period of 15 years. The carrying amount of the
lease liability as at 29 February 2024 was INR 160.57 million and the right-of-use asset was INR 112.53 millions. Due to a significant decline in market
demand, the Company has decided to terminate the contract having recoverable amount of the equipment was determined to be less than its carrying
amount, which has resulted in change in the lease payments and lease term. Accordingly, the Company has recorded gain on lease termination of INR
48.05 millions in the statement of profit and loss

In view of uncertainty of continuation Okhla Metro, emanating from termination of lease agreement, the Company has also impaired the carrying
value of remaining property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as at 29 February 2024.

62 Subsequent event

TFS Gurgaon Airport Services Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of the company, has been incorporated w.e.f 19 April 2024
On 19 September 2024, the Board of Director of the Company have declared an interim dividend of INR 43 40 per share in respect of financial year 2023-2024
which resulted in cash outflow of INR 16.84 millions.
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Travel Food Services Private Limited
Notes to the standal
(Al amonunts are in INR pullions, inlesy otherwise stted)

financinl

The Company does nol have any immavable property other than immovable propertics where Company is the lessee and the leases agreeraents are duly executed in favour of the lessee except for

the followng which are not held in the name of the Company:

Gross Held in  the|Whether title deed Perlad held- Indicnte|Reason for not being held in the
carrying  |name of holder is a promoter., range, where/name of the Company. Also
value director ar relative of  |appropriate indicate if in dispute
( INR in Ipromnter/director or
million) empluyee of promoter | l
direclor |
. 3 of 2 a C!
Leaschold building at Khata Khateni, Kundaghat TRV R o 1 |-Jan-23 Om ’,ccount ?flransfer the Business
| Undertaking on o “Shunp Sale
Leaschold building ut Chandigarh Roal City. Kalala, Punjab 2100 | TYASPL bE 1-Nov-23 o
*
Leasehold building at Pakka. Talwandi Road. Faridkot 1200} TYASRL o 29-Dec-21
; £
Leasehold building at Khatauani. Tehsi! Nilokheri. Kamnal 00 TYASPL i 1-Aug-23
2 g -
Leaschold building at Sant Nugar casl of Kailash Nagar, New Delhi 200 [ TYASPL O 26-Jul-23
Leaschald building at Vatika Mindspace. Faridabad 700) TYASPLY No 2-Jan-24 I
Leasehold building at Meenambakkam, Chennai EIG00RTRSCRLE* BT 4-Jan-14 Aqu.”md aSprnompRsiy _schcmc l
ol merger approved by NCLT |
Leasehold building at Rashid Mansion, Dr. Annie Besant Road. Worli 1300 |TESCPL**  |No .
, I-May-23 [
Mumbai -
i 539 00 [TFSCPL™ _ |Na [
Leasehold building at Meenambakkam, Chennai Airport I-Mav-23 '
|
326 00 |[TFSKPL** [No II
Leusehold building at NSCBI Airport , Kolkata 1-Nov-19
- 115 |RLR™=*+ No
Leasehold building at Kempe Gowda [ntermational Airport. Bengaluru 6-Jan-21
317 vesu q
Lzascehold building at Kempe Gowda Intemational Airpoit. Bengaluru 242BLR A 9-Jan-22

= I'Y ASPL: TFS Yamuna Arrport Services Private Limited
*“TFSCPL: TFS Chenna) Private Limited

#**TFSKPL. TFS Kolkata Private Limited

=*#*BLR. BLR Lounge Services Private Limited
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